WEVD COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA
Wednesday, January 10, 2024, at 6 p.m.

Community Center, 562 Winterbrook Rd., Campton, 03223

abrwnE

with Zoom access
Will be streamed on YouTube

Call to order

Pledge of Allegiance

Roll Call of Commissioners

Adoption of Agenda

Approval of Minutes
a.
b.
C.
d.

December 19, 2023
December 22, 2023
December 28, 2023
January 3, 2024

6. Treasurer's Report

~

GM's Report

8. CONSENT CALENDAR

a.
b.

Manifests
Treasurer’s Report

9. GENERAL CALENDAR ITEMS

a.

S@ o a0

WEVD Payroll service, Contract with Municipal Resources Inc. (action taken
12/22/23)

RCA - 7 Holland Trail

Rec Fund reconciliation with WEA

2022 Audit completed & in Handout

Resolving 2022 books — forgiveness of debt owed from Rec Fund
Reimbursement from Water to District for employee payroll & benefits
Administrative Services Agreement signed

Resignation of Michael Palm from Planning Board, Request for VVolunteers,
Announcement of Public Hearing Cancelation

10.Next Meeting: Wednesday, January 31, 2024 @ 4 p.m.
11.Public Comment Period

12.Non-Public Session

13.Adjourn Meeting

WEVD COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA, JANUARY 10, 2024
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WEVD 2023 Meeting DRAFT Minutes
December 19, 2023 — 6:00 PM

Attendees: Commissioners Maureen Patti, Gerry Panuczak and David Spinney. General Manager Ron
Beard and Water Department Administrator Allison Smith. Members of the public: Harry Bertino,

Members excused:

Attendees via Zoom: Melanie Perry, Yury Altshuler, Rita Donaldson (MRI Consultant), Jim Cahill,
Guest, Jaime Oldmixon.

Call to order: Commissioner Patti noted called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM.
Pledge of Allegiance: The meeting began with the Pledge of Allegiance.

Roll Call of Commissioners: Ms. Patti, Mr. Panuczak, and Mr. Spinney were present in person at the
Summit Lounge.

Adoption of Agenda.
Ms. Patti requested to being the meeting with items related to requests for Commission action as both
of the requestors were present on Zoom.

GENERAL CALENDAR ITEMS

RCA: Requesting Water Meter Install Refund

Ms. Patti noted that the request was from Jeffrey and Melanie Perry from 36 Wanosha Trail and the
amount to be refunded was $233.50.

After discussing the fact that the homeowners presented sufficient paperwork this time and that the
Water Department has inspected and approved the meter installed by a third party, Mr. Spinney made
a motion to approve reimbursement of $233.5 to Jeffrey and Melanie Perry from 36 Wanosha Trail for
the installation of a water meter. Ms. Patti duly seconded.

There was a brief discussion about using the funds from the Water Fund to reimburse for meter
installations of which there may be some others, but the total amount should not exceed two thousand
dollars.

Motion carried with a roll call vote 3:0 Mr. Spinney — aye, Ms. Patti — aye, Mr. Panuczak — aye.

WEVD Commissioners 12/19/2023 APPROVED meeting minutes. 1
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RCA: 124 Pegwood Water Bill

Ms. Smith provided the details of the request for action which relates to the owner requesting a
proration of the water rate billed to his property due to it still being under construction and not
connected to water. Mr. Panuczak spoke about the Water Ordinance requiring the use of the tax card
which indicated that the house was complete as July of 2023. There was discussion about whether the
issue has to be resolved with the Town first, before the District could abate it.

Yuri Altshuler from 124 Pegwood Road, via Zoom, explained that the house is still under construction
and there is no plumbing done as of yet. He said that he expects to have this done within the next two
months.

Members reiterated that the confusion is that the Town of Thornton has deemed the house as complete
on the tax card and that they were not sure why. Ms. Smith said that she was also not sure how the
Town Assessor decides whether a house is complete for tax purposes. She said that she could check
the tax card again to see when it was changed and whether there are any notes on there. She can also
check with the Town staff.

Mr. Spinney made a motion to abate 124 Pegwood Road back to the lot status for this billing cycle.
Ms. Patti duly seconded. Motion carried with a roll call vote 3:0 Mr. Spinney — aye, Ms. Patti — aye,
Mr. Panuczak — aye.

WEVD Credit Card Application

There was discussion that revolved around obtaining a PE (Purchase and Expense) card from Citizens
Bank. Ms. Donaldson explained the differences between the credit card and PE card, which is
basically a government Credit Card. The statements for the PE card are broken down by the individual
who holds the card, providing clear tracking of expenses by user. Unlike traditional credit cards tied to
individual employees with their Social Security numbers, the PE card is associated with the
municipality as a whole, providing a level of protection and separation.

Ms. Patti said that the District need to have a savings account with Citizens Bank and there was
discussion to transfer $50,000 thousand in reserve funds to that bank to secure the PE card.
Application for a PE card would require the District to adopt a Credit Card policy.

WEVD Credit Card Policy

Members then turned to the Credit Card policy that was included in the packet. Discussion ensued
about the costs of carrying a balance on the credit card and that the policy has to reflect the fact that
any payments will have to be made in a timely manner to avoid any balances remaining past due. Ms.
Donaldson answered questions about why Citizens Bank had been chosen as opposed to Bank of New

WEVD Commissioners 12/19/2023 APPROVED meeting minutes. P
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Hampshire which does not really have a PE card option. She also said that the minimum payment
amount is full balance and it has to be paid monthly.

Ms. Patti made a motion to adopt the proposed Credit Card Policy that is in the packet as written.
Mr. Panuczak duly seconded and Motion carried with a roll call vote 3:0 Mr. Spinney — aye, Ms. Patti
—aye, Mr. Panuczak — aye.

Ms. Patti made a motion for the General Manager to submit the Credit Card application to Citizens
Bank and to arrange all the necessary money transfers from the General Fund to Citizens Bank in
order to secure that card with the bank. Mr. Spinney duly seconded.

There was discussion about the fact that the proposed credit limit is $12,50 less than the funds that the
District will hold in the bank. Ms. Donaldson explained that she wanted to have a cushion for
purchases that may exceed the credit limit for an individual card holder. Credit limit then could be
increased for that purchase and then be lowered after it has been paid off.

Motion carried with a roll call vote 3:0 Mr. Spinney — aye, Ms. Patti — aye, Mr. Panuczak — aye.

Approval of Minutes

a. November 29, 2023

Ms. Patti made a motion to amend the draft minutes of 11/29/2023 consistent with the 7 amendments
prepared my Ms. Patti. Mr. Panuczak duly seconded and Motion carried with a roll call vote 3:0 Mr.
Spinney — aye, Ms. Patti — aye, Mr. Panuczak — aye.

Ms. Patti made a motion to make amended minutes of 11/29/2023 as official meeting minutes.
Mr. Panuczak duly seconded and Motion carried with a roll call vote 3:0 Mr. Spinney — aye, Ms. Patti
—aye, Mr. Panuczak — aye.

Treasurer’s Report
There was none.

GM’s Report

1. Work on the snowmaking is moving forward. The tank has been set in place. The power is being
installed and then the equipment will be installed in the shed.

2. Mr. Beard will be sending Ken Michaud a Thank You letter for his very kind donation of lockers
that the Management has installed at Campton Mountain.

3. Mr. Pelchat and his team did an amazing job keeping the outflow and roads during the storm event.

WEVD Commissioners 12/19/2023 APPROVED meeting minutes. 3
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4. Mr. Baert and his team kept a close eye on the water system and roads during the storm event.
Today they are making minor repairs on Pegwood Road and will be firming up the muddy area on the
Richardson Trail Road.

5. Dry hydrant arrived today but there were some issues with digging to make the connection.

Ms. Patti made a motion to adopt the GM report with the addition of two last names for Mr. Pelchat
and Mr. Baert. Mr. Panuczak duly seconded, and motion carried with a roll call vote 3:0. Mr. Spinney
—aye, Ms. Patti — aye, Mr. Panuczak — aye.

CONSENT CALENDAR

Manifests
Ms. Patti made a motion to approve the manifests in the handout. Motion carried with a roll call vote
3:0. Mr. Spinney — aye, Ms. Patti — aye, Mr. Panuczak — aye.

Ms. Patti noted that after the Commissioners approved the Credit Card policy, Ms. Smith discovered a
set of typos throughout the document where it should state instead of accounts receivable -- accounts
payable.

Ms. Patti made a motion to amend the WEVD Credit Card Policy to correct the typo by replacing the
word receivable by word payable everywhere. Mr. Spinney duly seconded and Motion carried with a
roll call vote 3:0 Mr. Spinney — aye, Ms. Patti — aye, Mr. Panuczak — aye.

Setting additional mandatory meetings for 2024 Annual Meeting

Ms. Patti provided the deadlines for the budget and warrant hearings. Members discussed setting the
dates. February 13 for the budget hearing and Commission regular meeting and February 15 for the
warrant at 6 PM. Snow date for both would be February 16 at 4 PM.

Ms. Patti made a motion to schedule the budget hearing for Tuesday, February 13 at 6 PM with a
snow date of Friday, February 16th at 6 PM. Mr. Panuczak duly seconded and motion carried with a
roll call vote 3:0. Mr. Spinney — aye, Ms. Patti — aye, Mr. Panuczak — aye.

Ms. Patti made a motion to schedule the warrant hearing for Thursday, February 15 at 6 PM with a

snow date of Friday, February 16 at 6 PM. Mr. Panuczak duly seconded and Motion carried with a
roll call vote 3:0. Mr. Spinney — aye, Ms. Patti — aye, Mr. Panuczak — aye.

WEVD Commissioners 12/19/2023 APPROVED meeting minutes. 4
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Ms. Patti made a motion to have a snow date for the District Annual Meeting (which is on Saturday,
March 16 at 9:00 AM) for Saturday, March 23 at 9 AM. Mr. Panuczak duly seconded and motion
carried with a roll call vote 3:0. Mr. Spinney — aye, Ms. Patti — aye, Mr. Panuczak — aye.

Item 10. C (Setting Rec Fund Reconciliation for 4th Quarter) was eliminated from the Agenda as there
was no need to set that date.

2024 Commission Meeting schedule
After reviewing the 2024 Commission Meeting schedule, members made the following changes:

Feb 28 changed to Feb 27 at 4 PM

Apr 24 changed to Apr 23 at 10 AM

July 24 changed to July 31 at 4 PM

August 28 - meeting deleted

Members agreed by consensus on the amended schedule.

Next Meeting: January 10, 2024 @ 6 p.m.

Public Comment Period

- Harry Bertino, 2710 Condo Road, raised a concern about conflicting information regarding
how water bills are calculated. He mentioned receiving an email from the District explaining
the calculation based on ASHRAE 62.2, but in meetings and hearings, he has been told
otherwise. Mr. Bertino said that he is seeking clarification on the correct method of water bill
calculation. He emphasized the importance of resolving the conflict as incorrect information
may have led to penalties for residents. Additionally, he expressed a willingness to discuss
certain matters related to this in an executive session.

Ms. Smith explained that water bills are calculated based on the number of bedrooms provided
on the tax card, with the number of occupants determined by the number of bedrooms plus one.
This aligns with the ASHRAE 62.2 guideline.

- Mr. Bertino countered this explanation, citing a different interpretation where the number of
occupants is obtained by asking the homeowner directly and stated that it is a generic number
that comes from using the formula of the number of bedrooms plus one. He provided an
example of accounting for occupants when measuring airflow in a house, where the

WEVD Commissioners 12/19/2023 APPROVED meeting minutes. 5
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homeowner is asked about how many occupants reside there and added that opening windows

can also affect the number of occupants in this case and that is what is says in ASHRAE 62.2.
Mr. Panuczak reiterated that the number of occupants for the water bills is determined by the number
of bedrooms on the tax card plus one.

There was nobody else willing to address the Commission in person, via remote platform, by phone.

Non-Public Session

Ms. Patti motioned to enter non-public session for the purposes described in RSA 91-A:3, 1l (a), (c),
and (). Mr. Spinney duly seconded. Motion carried with a roll call vote 3:0. Mr. Spinney — aye, Ms.
Patti — aye, Mr. Panuczak — aye.

Non-public session was entered at 7:10 PM, Commissioners Panuczak and Spinney were present in
person as well as the General Manager Ron Beard (left at 8:22 PM) and Water Department
Administrator Allison Smith (left at 7:29 PM).

Resumption of Public Session

Mr. Spinney motioned to exit non-public session at 9:21 PM. Mr. Panuczak duly seconded. Motion
carried with a roll call vote 3:0. Mr. Spinney — aye, Ms. Patti — aye, Mr. Panuczak — aye.

Public session was entered at 9:22 PM. Commissioners Patti, Panuczak, and Spinney were present in
person.

The nonpublic session minutes were sealed by a motion from Mr. Spinney, a second by Mr. Panuczak,
as divulgence of the minutes would adversely affect the reputation of someone other than a
Commissioner. Motion carried with a roll call vote 3:0. Mr. Spinney — aye, Ms. Patti — aye, Mr.
Panuczak — aye.

Adjourn Meeting

Mr. Panuczak made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Mr. Spinney duly seconded. Motion carried with
aroll call vote 3:0. Mr. Spinney — aye, Ms. Patti — aye, Mr. Panuczak — aye.

Meeting adjourned at 9:25 PM.

Prepared by Alvina Snegach

WEVD Commissioners 12/19/2023 APPROVED meeting minutes. 6
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Waterville Estates Village District DECEMBER 22, 2023
Commission Meeting DRAFT Minutes

Attendees at physical location: Commissioners Maureen Patti and Gerry
Panuczak. WEVD General Manager Ron Beard was present.

Call to Order: Chair Patti called the meeting to order at 5:03 p.m.
Roll call of Commissioners taken. Ms. Patti and Mr. Panuczak present.
Pledge of Allegiance occurred.

Ms. Patti announced that, as was included in the notice for this meeting of the
Commissioners, the purpose of this public body meeting is to enter Non-Public
Session. However, a time sensitive matter had come to her attention and asked the
GM to address the Commissioners.

GM Ron Beard asked the Commission to act on a proposed agreement to outsource
the processing of WEVD payroll. Ms. Patti agreed that, since the contract needed
to be signed before the end of the year AND the Commission had previously voted
to have the GM secure an agreement with MR1 which will result in cost savings
and significantly reduce the amount of staff time spent on the task of payroll, the
Commission would review and decide whether to approve the contract. As both
Commissioners in attendance had reviewed the agreement in advance of the
meeting and both expressed the opinion the agreement met or exceeded their
expectations for having an outside vendor ensure that District payroll would be
done properly, thoroughly, and in compliance with state and federal requirements,
Ms. Patti moved to approve the contract with MRI for $16,250.00. Mr. Panuczak
seconded the motion. A roll call vote was taken and the motion passed.

Ms. Patti announced that no other District business shall be conducted in the Public
Session after the Non-Public Session.

At 5:08 p.m., Ms. Patti moved to enter Non-Public Session pursuant to RSA 91-
A:3, 11 (a) and (c). This motion was seconded by Mr. Panuczak. With a roll call
vote, the motion passed unanimously.

WEVD Commission 122223 Draft Meeting Minutes



Mr. Panuczak moved to re-enter Public Session. The motion was seconded by
Ms. Patti. Roll call vote of the Commissioners approving the motion was
unanimous.

Public Session re-convened at 6:27 p.m. Both Commissioners in attendance.

Mr. Panuczak moved to seal the minutes of the Non-Public Session on the
grounds that divulgence of this information would adversely affect the
reputation of a person other than a Commissioner. Ms. Patti seconded. A roll
call vote was taken and both Commissioners voted “aye.”

No business was conducted during the re-convened Public Session.

Ms. Patti moved to adjourn the meeting and that motion was seconded by Mr.
Panuczak. The vote to adjourn, taken by roll call, was unanimous and the meeting
ended at 6:28 p.m.

(Minutes produced by M. Patti.)

WEVD Commission 122223 Draft Meeting Minutes



Waterville Estates Village District DECEMBER 28, 2023
Commission Meeting DRAFT Minutes

Attendees at physical location: Commissioners Maureen Patti and Dave Spinney.
Attending Remotely: Commissioner Gerry Panuczak.
Call to Order: Chair Patti called the meeting to order at 2:38 p.m.

Roll call of Commissioners taken. Ms. Patti and Mr. Spinney were present. Mr.
Panuczak was attending by phone.

Ms. Patti announced that, as was included in the notice for this meeting of the
Commissioners, the purpose of this public body meeting is to enter Non-Public
Session. Ms. Patti announced that no District business shall be conducted in the
Public Session after the Non-Public Session.

At 2:38 p.m., Ms. Patti moved to enter Non-Public Session pursuant to RSA 91-
A:3, Il (I). This motion was seconded by Mr. Spinney. With a roll call vote, the
motion passed unanimously.

Mr. Spinney moved to re-enter Public Session. The motion was seconded by
Mr. Panuczak. Roll call vote of the Commissioners approving the motion was
unanimous.

Public Session re-convened at 3:23 p.m. All Commissioners in attendance at the
physical location (Patti and Spinney) and on the phone (Panuczak).

Mr. Panuczak moved to seal the minutes of the Non-Public Session on the
grounds that divulgence of this information would adversely affect the
reputation of a person other than a Commissioner. Mr. Spinney seconded. A
roll call vote was taken and all Commissioners voted “aye.”

No business was conducted during the re-convened Public Session.

Mr. Spinney moved to adjourn the meeting and that motion was seconded by
Mr. Panuczak. The vote to adjourn, taken by roll call, was unanimous and the
meeting ended at 3:24 p.m.

(Minutes produced by M. Patti.)

WEVD Commission 122823 Draft Meeting Minutes



Waterville Estates Village District JANUARY 3, 2024
Commission Meeting DRAFT Minutes

Attendees at physical location: Commissioners Maureen Patti, Gerry Panuczak,
and Dave Spinney.

Call to Order: Chair Patti called the meeting to order at 6:05 p.m.

Roll call of Commissioners taken. Ms. Patti, Mr. Panuczak, and Mr. Spinney were
present.

Ms. Patti announced that, as was included in the notice for this meeting of the
Commissioners, the purpose of this public body meeting is to enter Non-Public
Session. Ms. Patti announced that no District business shall be conducted in the
Public Session after the Non-Public Session.

At 6:06 p.m., Mr. Spinney moved to enter Non-Public Session pursuant to RSA
91-A:3, Il (I). This motion was seconded by Mr. Panuczak. With a roll call vote,
the motion passed unanimously.

Mr. Spinney moved to re-enter Public Session. The motion was seconded by
Mr. Panuczak. Roll call vote of the Commissioners approving the motion was
unanimous.

Public Session re-convened at 8:13 p.m. All Commissioners in attendance at the
physical location.

Mr. Panuczak moved to seal the minutes of the Non-Public Session on the
grounds that divulgence of this information would adversely affect the
reputation of a person other than a Commissioner. Mr. Spinney seconded. A
roll call vote was taken and all Commissioners voted “aye.”

No business was conducted during the re-convened Public Session.

Ms. Patti moved to adjourn the meeting and that motion was seconded by Mr.
Spinney. The vote to adjourn, taken by roll call, was unanimous and the meeting
ended at 8:15 p.m.

(Minutes produced by M. Patti.)

WEVD Commission 010324 Draft Meeting Minutes
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GM Report January 10, 2024

. Steve located a leak on Liberty Lane and it has been repaired.

Shawn Pelchat has begun removing the unused duct work in the summit lounge. Once that is
done they will be removing the glass room divider, then will proceed with repainting the ceiling.
. I am hopeful we will be done with all of the necessary connections to the water tank this week
then we can fire up snowmaking.

. I have been working with Mountain Guard and getting them all of the required documents so
they can process our insurance renewal for Campton Mountain.



Check Manifest - by Payee

Date:  12/29/2023 Batch ID: 129 BANK OF NH - DISTRICT
Payment# Type Check Date Vendor ID Payee S
Invoice # PO # Invoice Date Invoice Amount Discount Taken Amount Paid
0 SYSTEM 12/29/2023 90 AIRGAS USA, LLC
9144841987 12/27/2023 1,954.63 0.00 1,954.63
01.4524.003.618 / POOL - POOL CHEMICALS & SUPPLIES 1,538.64
CARBON DIOXIDE
03.4523.002.610 / LNG - BAR SUPPLIES 187.80
CARBON DIOXIDE
01.4314.003.615 / B&G - SUPPLIES 91.94
OXGYEN
01.4524.003.618 / POOL - POOL CHEMICALS & SUPPLIES 68.12
FEES
03.4523.002.610 / LNG - BAR SUPPLIES 68.13
FEES
Total Check #: 0 1,954.63
0 SYSTEM 12/29/2023 150 ALVINA SNEGACH
12.1.2023 12/29/2023 75.00 0.00 75.00
01.4130.002.390 / EXEC - CONSULTING 75.00
MEETIN 12.19.2023
Total Check #: 0 75.00
0 SYSTEM 12/29/2023 220 AMERIGAS
3158519282 12/29/2023 1,280.87 0.00 1,280.87
01.4522.002.341 / SKI - BUILDING HEAT 1,280.87
658.7 GALLONS
Total Check #: 0 1,280.87
0 SYSTEM 12/29/2023 250 AMERIGAS
3158519287 12/29/2023 1,552.00 0.00 1,5652.00
01.4314.003.341 / B&G - HEAT 1,552.00
800 GALLONS 12/15
Total Check #: 0 1,552.00
0 SYSTEM 12/29/2023 570 BENJAMIN DEMERS
12.07.2023 12/29/2023 84.98 0.00 84.98
Printed 12/29/2023 324PM By RDONALDSOM  WATERVILLE ESTATES -  Page 1




Check Manifest - by Payee

Date:  12/29/2023 Batch ID: 129 BANK OF NH - DISTRICT
Payment# Type Check Date  Vendor ID Payee o -
Invoice # PO # Invoice Date Invoice Amount Discount Taken Amount Paid
01.4314.003.614 / B&G - CLEANING SUPPLIES 34.98

CASH PURCHASE FROM SAM'S CLUB

01.4130.002.622 / EXEC - ANNUAL EMPLOYEE PARTY 50.00
SANTA SERVICES 12.16.2023

Total Check #: 0 84.98
0 SYSTEM 12/29/2023 5640 CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS
12.12.2023 12/29/2023 1,229.67 0.00 1,229.67
01.4312.002.350 / HWY - TELEPHONE & INTERNET 188.38
AC 46907
01.4522.002.350 / SKI - CABLE, INTERNET & PHONE 534.35
AC 0035967
01.4520.002.345 / REC - CABLE 136.97
AC 35967
01.4130.002.350 / EXEC - TELEPHONE & INTERNET 164.99
AC 35967
01.4520.002.344 / REC - INTERENET 164.99
AC 35967
01.4520.002.350 / REC - TELEPHONE 39.99
AC 35967
Total Check #: 0 1,229.67
0 SYSTEM 12/29/2023 1270 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICATION
12.18 3542 12/29/2023 129.47 0.00 12947
01.4299.001.813 / PSAFE - ALARM - FIRE TELEPONE LINES ' 12947
12.18.2023
Total Check #: 0 129.47

0 SYSTEM 12/29/2023 1260

CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICATIONS

12.12.2023 12/29/2023 63.81 0.00 63.81
01.4312.002.350 / HWY - TELEPHONE & INTERNET 31.91
12.12.2023
02.4331.520.350 / WTR - TELEPHONE 31.90
12.12.2023
Total Check #: 0 63.81

Printed 12/29/2023 3:24PM By RDONALDSOM  WATERVILLE ESTATES Page 2




Check Manifest - by Payee

Date:  12/29/2023 Batch ID: 129 BANK OF NH - DISTRICT
Payment# Type Check Date  Vendor ID Payee - R
Invoice # PO # Invoice Date Invoice Amount Discount Taken Amount Paid
0 SYSTEM 12/29/2023 1320 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICATIONS
12.12.2023 12/29/2023 51.32 0.00 51.32
01.4299.001.813 / PSAFE - ALARM - FIRE TELEPONE LINES 51.32
12.12.2023
Total Check #: 0 51.32
0 SYSTEM 12/29/2023 1330 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICATIONS
12.21.2023 : 12/29/2023 121.00 0.00 121.00
01.4299.001.813 / PSAFE - ALARM - FIRE TELEPONE LINES 121.00
12.21.2023
Total Check #: 0 121.00
0 SYSTEM 12/29/2023 1340 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICATIONS
12.12.2023 12/29/2023 59.51 0.00 59.51
01.4520.002.350 / REC - TELEPHONE 59.51
12.12.2023
Total Check #: 0 59.51
0 SYSTEM 12/29/2023 1360 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICATIONS
12.18.2023 12/29/2023 124.64 0.00 124.64
01.4299.001.813 / PSAFE - ALARM - FIRE TELEPONE LINES 124.64
12.18.2023
Total Check #: 0 124.64
0 SYSTEM 12/29/2023 1250 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICATIONS
12.12.2023 12/29/2023 202.16 0.00 202.16
01.4299.001.813 / PSAFE - ALARM - FIRE TELEPONE LINES 202.16
12.12.2023
Total Check #: 0 202.16
0 SYSTEM 12/29/2023 1240 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICATIONS
12.12.2023 12/29/2023 59.01 0.00 59.01
02.4331.520.350 / WTR - TELEPHONE 59.01

Printed 12/20/2023 3:24PM By RDONALDSOM © WATERVILLE ESTATES




Check Manifest - by Payee

Date:  12/29/2023 Batch ID: 129 BANK OF NH - DISTRICT
Payment# Type Check Date  Vendor ID Payee 7 S
Invoice # PO # Invoice Date Invoice Amount Discount Taken Amount Paid
12.12.2023
Total Check #: 0 59.01
0 SYSTEM 12/29/2023 1480 D. LEWIS AND SON CONSTRUCTION SERVICE
PA02023-01 12/29/2023 2,295.00 0.00 2,295.00
01.4312.002.390 / HWY - SUBCONTRACTORS 2,295.00
NOV DEC PLOWING
Total Check #: 0 2,295.00
0 SYSTEM 12/29/2023 7480 HANDYMAN HARDWARE INC.
8404704 12/29/2023 90.88 0.00 90.88
01.4312.002.610 / HWY - SHOP SUPPLIES 90.88
ALUM & FASTENERS
8405353 12/12/2023 126.00 0.00 126.00
01.4312.002.610 / HWY - SHOP SUPPLIES 82.00
SUPPLIES
02.4331.520.641 / WTR - SYSTEM REPAIRS 44.00
GUARD LATCH
8405485 12/29/2023 4.65 0.00 4.65
02.4331.520.641 /| WTR - SYSTEM REPAIRS 4.65
8405485
Total Check #: 0 221.53

0 SYSTEM 12/29/2023 2580

HARCROS CHEMICALS, INC.

291012768 12/06/2023 948.90 0.00 948.90

01.4524.003.618 / POOL - POOL CHEMICALS & SUPPLIES 948.90
SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE

Total Check #: 0 948.90
0 SYSTEM 12/29/2023 2630 HEALTH TRUST
00149088 12/29/2023 20,851.14 0.00 20,851.14
02.4331.520.211 / WTR - DENTAL INSURANCE 75.73
JAN INSURANCE
02.4331.520.210 / WTR - HEALTH INSURANCE 1,870.56

JAN INSURANCE

Srod 12/20/2023 324PM By RDONALDSON  WATERVILLEESTATES -




Check Manifest - by Payee

Date:  12/29/2023 Batch ID: 129 BANK OF NH - DISTRICT
Payment# Type Check Date  Vendor ID 7 P;yeie - 7 7
Invoice # PO # Invoice Date Invoice Amount Discount Taken Amount Paid
01.4314.001.210 / B&G - HEALTH INSURANCE 7,482.24
JAN INSURANCE
01.4314.001.211 / B&G - DENTAL INSURANCE 349.99
JAN INSURANCE
01.4521.001.210 / FD - HEALTH INSURANCE 2,494.08
JAN INSURANCE
01.4521.001.211 / FD - DENTAL INSURANCE 100.98
JAN INSURANCE
01.4130.001.210 / EXEC - HEALTH INSURANCE 4,364.64
JAN INSURANCE
01.4130.001.211 / EXEC - DENTAL INSURANCE 173.28
JAN INSURANCE
03.4520.001.210 / REC - HEALTH INSURANCE 1,247.04
JAN INSURANCE
03.4520.001.211 / REC - DENTAL INSURANCE 50.49

JAN INSURANCE

01.4312.001.210 / HWY - HEALTH INSURANCE 1,247.04
JAN INSURANCE

01.4312.001.211 / HWY - DENTAL INSURANCE 50.49
JAN INSURANCE

01.4525.001.210 / FBF - HEALTH INSURANCE 1,247.04
JAN INSURANCE

01.4525.001.211 / FBF - DENTAL INSURANCE 97.54

JAN INSURANCE

Total Check #: 0 20,851.14
0 SYSTEM 12/29/2023 2710 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES
11.17.2023 12/29/2023 1,636.42 0.00 1,636.42
01.1150.000.004 / AR - WEA 1,636.42
PLYWOOD & INSULATION
TOOL CHEST 12/29/2023 1,597.00 0.00 1,597.00
01.4312.002.612 / HWY - LARGE TOOLS 1,597.00
TOOL CHEST
WEA 12/29/2023 1,126.69 0.00 1,126.69
01.1150.000.004 / AR - WEA 1,126.69
400 AMP 240VOLT DOUBLE
Total Check #: 0 4,360.11

Printed 12/29/2023 3:24PM By RDONALDSOM WATERVILLE ESTATES |




Check Manifest - by Payee

Date: 12/29/2023 Batch ID: 129 BANK OF NH - DISTRICT
Payment# Type Check Date  Vendor ID Payee 7 o
Invoice # PO # Invoice Date Invoice Amount Discount Taken Amount Paid
0 SYSTEM 12/29/2023 3170 JP PEST SERVICES
3688079 12/29/2023 386.00 0.00 386.00
01.4520.003.619 / REC - PEST CONTROL 152.00
01.4520.003.619 / REC - PEST CONTROL 234.00
Total Check #: 0 386.00
0 SYSTEM 12/29/2023 3390 LINDA BROOKNER
CERT FINANCE 12/29/2023 14.74 0.00 14.74
01.4520.002.625 / REC - POSTAGE 8.56
CERTIFIED POSTAGE
02.4331.520.625 / WTR - POSTAGE 6.18
CERTIFIED MAIL - WATER
Total Check #: 0 14.74
0 SYSTEM 12/29/2023 3970 MUNICIPAL RESOURCES, INC.
24525 12/12/2023 12,977.58 0.00 12,977.58
01.4130.002.390 / EXEC - CONSULTING 12,977.58
MONT OF NOVEMBR
Total Check #: 0 12,977.58
0 SYSTEM 12/29/2023 8060 NEEDHAM ELECTRIC SUPPLY
S6125227.001 12/29/2023 16.08 0.00 16.08
01.4522.003.662 / SKI - SKI AREA REPAIRS 16.08
PVC
S6126530.001 12/29/2023 240.71 0.00 240.71
01.4522.003.662 / SKI - SKI AREA REPAIRS 240.71
PVC
S61304090.001 12/08/2023 80.30 0.00 80.30
01.4314.003.632 / B&G - OUTDOOR LIGHTING 80.30
WRAP
Total Check #: 0 337.09
0 SYSTEM 12/29/2023 4150 NEW HAMPSHIRE LIQUOR COMMISSION
Printed 12/29/2023 3:24PM By RDONALDSOMN | WATERVILLE ESTATES ) Page 6




Check Manifest - by Payee

Date:  12/29/2023 Batch ID: 129 BANK OF NH - DISTRICT
Payment# Type Check Date  Vendor ID Payee 7 - -
Invoice # PO # Invoice Date Invoice Amount Discount Taken Amount Paid
230065024052 12/29/2023 277.89 0.00 277.89
03.3409.001.006 / COG - LIQUOR 277.89
LIQUOR
230065024274 12/15/2023 57.98 0.00 57.98
03.3409.001.006 / COG - LIQUOR 57.98
230065024506 12/29/2023 83.65 0.00 83.65
03.3409.001.008 / COG - WINE 83.65
Total Check #: 0 419.52
0 SYSTEM 12/29/2023 4820 PERFORMANCE FOOD GROUP
7488092 12/29/2023 1,228.03 0.00 1,228.03
03.4522.003.612 / SKI - KITCHEN SUPPLIES 142.75
SUPPLIES
03.3409.001.002 / COG - FOOD 1,077.78
FOOD
03.3409.001.002 / COG - FOOD 7.50
FUEL CHARGE
7492693 12/29/2023 2,393.22 0.00 2,393.22
03.4522.003.612 / SKI - KITCHEN SUPPLIES 499.12
SUPPLIES
03.3409.002.610 / COG - BAR SUPPLIES 32.00
BAR
03.3409.001.002 / COG - FOOD 1,854.60
FOOD
03.3409.001.002 / COG - FOOD 7.50
FUEL CHARGE
Total Check #: 0 3,621.25
0 SYSTEM 12/29/2023 8420 SANEL AUTO PARTS
10641 12/29/2023 399.07 0.00 399.07
02.4331.520.826 / WTR - VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 399.07
OIL & FILTERS
Total Check #: 0 399.07
0 SYSTEM 12/29/2023 5730 STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE-DOT
Printed 12/20/2023 324PM By RDONALDSOM WATERVILLE ESTATES Page 7




Check Manifest - by Payee

Date:  12/29/2023 Batch ID: 129 BANK OF NH - DISTRICT
Payment# Type Check Date  Vendor ID Payee . :
Invoice # PO # Invoice Date Invoice Amount Discount Taken Amount Paid
351088 12/29/2023 349.10 0.00 349.10
01.4314.003.823 / B&G - VEHICLE FUEL 349.10
FUEL F350 XL
Total Check #: 0 349.10
0 SYSTEM 12/29/2023 6100 TRACY DUFFY
SKI FOOD 12/29/2023 197.62 0.00 197.62
03.4522.003.612 / SKI - KITCHEN SUPPLIES 27.97
WALMART
03.3409.002.610 / COG - BAR SUPPLIES 2.00
HANNAFORD
03.3409.001.002 / COG - FOOD 21.81
HANNAFORD
03.3409.001.002 / COG - FOOD 145.84
HANNAFORD
Total Check #: 0 197.62
0 SYSTEM 12/29/2023 6180 UNIFIRST CORPORATION
1070284184 12/29/2023 112.76 0.00 112.76
03.4523.002.611 / LNG - KITCHEN SUPPLIES 112.76
LAUNDRY
Total Check #: 0 112.76
0 SYSTEM 12/29/2023 6240 UPTON & HATFIELD, LLP
165622 12/29/2023 3,667.50 0.00 3,667.50
01.4130.002.323 / EXEC - LEGAL SERVICES 3,667.50
Total Check #: 0 3,667.50
0 SYSTEM 12/29/2023 6280 VERIZON WIRELESS
NOV - DEC 12/29/2023 308.05 0.00 308.05
02.4331.520.351 / WTR - CELL PHONE 41.06
01.4130.002.351 / EXEC - CELL PHONES 209.24
01.4312.002.351 / HWY - CELL PHONES 57.75
Total Check #: 0 308.05
brmed 12/29/2023 324PM By RDONALDSON WATERVILLE ESTATES - Page 8




Check Manifest - by Payee

Date:  12/29/2023 Batch ID: 129 BANK OF NH - DISTRICT
Payment# Type Check Date  Vendor ID Payee
Invoice # PO # Invoice Date Invoice Amount Discount Taken Amount Paid
0 SYSTEM 12/29/2023 6530 WEVD WATER DEPARTMENT
WATER 12/29/2023 90.83 0.00 90.83
01.4314.003.346 / B&G - WATER 90.83
Total Check #: 0 90.83
0 SYSTEM 12/29/2023 6680 XEROX FINANCIAL SERVICES
5128066 12/29/2023 423.75 0.00 42375
01.4130.002.618 / EXEC - COPIER LEASE 141.25
01.4520.002.618 / REC - COPIER LEASE 141.25
02.4331.520.618 / WTR - COPIER LEASE 141.25
Total Check #: 0 423.75

Printed 12/29/2023 3:24PM By RDONALDSOM

~ WATERVILLE ESTATES




Check Manifest - by Payee

Date:  12/29/2023 Batch ID: 129 BANK OF NH - DISTRICT
Payment# Type CfTe;k Date Vendor |B - Pay;ém W - 7 o a
Invoice # PO # Invoice Date Invoice Amount Discount Taken Amount Paid
12/29/2023 Check Manifest Batch: 129 Chk Count: 33  Total Amnt: 58,969.61
--- Subtotals by Fund ---
Fund Description Amount
01 VILLAGE DISTRICT FUND 50,391.59
02 WATER FUND 2,673.41
03 RECREATION FUND 5,904.61

--- Signatures ---

Ron Beard, General Manager

Maureen Patti, Commissioner-Chair

Dave Spinney, Commissioner

Gerald Panuczak, Commissioner

Printed 12/29/2023 3:24PM By RDONALDSOM WATERVILLE ESTATES




Check Manifest - by Payee

Date: 12/29/2023 Batch ID: 128 BANK OF NH - WATER
Payment# Type Check Date  Vendor ID Payee
Invoice # PO # Invoice Date Invoice Amount Discount Taken Amount Paid
0 SYSTEM 12/29/2023 9637 JEFFREY AND/OR MELANIE PERRY
RFUND 12/29/2023 233.50 0.00 233.50
02.4331.520.620 / WTR - MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE 233.50
METER INSTALLATION REFUND
Total Check #: 0 233.50
0 SYSTEM 12/29/2023 9270 NH ELECTTRIC CO-OP
NOV/DEC 12/29/2023 2,580.73 0.00 2,580.73
02.4331.520.340 / WTR - ELECTRICITY 2,580.73
11.13.2023 - 12.11.2023
Total Check #: 0 2,580.73
0 SYSTEM 12/29/2023 9120 TEAM EJP CONCORD, NH
6236872 11/30/2023 275.37 0.00 275.37
02.4331.520.641 / WTR - SYSTEM REPAIRS 275.37
BRASS SADDLE
Total Check #: 0 275.37
Printed 12/29/2023 3:01PM By RDONALDSON  WATERVILLEESTATES  Page 1



Check Manifest - by Payee

Date:  12/29/2023 Batch ID: 128 BANK OF NH - WATER
Payment# Type Check Date  Vendor ID Payee
Invoice # PO # Invoice Date Invoice Amount Discount Taken Amount Paid
12/29/2023 Check Manifest Batch: 128 Chk Count: 3 Total Amnt: 3,089.60
--- Subtotals by Fund ---
Fund Description Amount
02 WATER FUND 3,089.60
--- Signatures ---
Ron Beard, General Manager
Maureen Patti, Commissioner-Chair
Dave Spinney, Commissioner
Gerald Panuczak, Commissioner
Printed 12/29/2023 3:01PM By RDONALDSOM a WATERVILLE ESTATES - Page 1



Check Manifest - by Payee

Date:  12/31/2023 Batch ID: 136 BANK OF NH - DISTRICT
Payment# Type Check Date  Vendor ID Payee
Invoice # PO# Invoice Date Invoice Amount Discount Taken Amount Paid
0 SYSTEM 12/31/2023 80 AFLAC
479859 12/30/2023 425.96 0.00 425.96
01.2020.000.008 / AFLAC PAYABLE 425.96
Total Check #: 0 425.96
0 SYSTEM 12/31/2023 9673 BOB WINTERS
REFUND 12-29-23 12/29/2023 70.00 0.00 70.00
03.3401.003.001 / EVNT - EVENTS 70.00
Total Check #: 0 70.00
0 SYSTEM 12/31/2023 4470 CARDMEMBER SERVICE
114-2737312-5601030 12/14/2023 62.67 0.00 62.67
01.4314.003.614 / B&G - CLEANING SUPPLIES 62.67
114-2814213-0913850 12/14/2023 39.56 0.00 39.56
01.4314.003.614 / B&G - CLEANING SUPPLIES 39.56
114-4360385-6201022 12/14/2023 264.53 0.00 264.53
01.4314.003.614 / B&G - CLEANING SUPPLIES 264.53
114-6756312-6243429 12/14/2023 24.99 0.00 24.99
01.4314.003.614 / B&G - CLEANING SUPPLIES 24.99
Total Check #: 0 391.75
0 SYSTEM 12/31/2023 4440 CARDMEMBER SERVICES
113-1049989-5456241 12/27/2023 70.88 0.00 70.88
01.4314.003.614 / B&G - CLEANING SUPPLIES 70.88
113-3390322-2654633 12/26/2023 899.99 0.00 899.99
01.4524.003.631 / POOL - POOL REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 899.99
113-6082819-8794665 11/27/2023 15.30 0.00 15.30
01.1150.000.004 / AR - WEA 15.30
SNOW MAKING
113-6582820-0742633 11/15/2023 81.00 0.00 81.00
01.1150.000.004 / AR - WEA 81.00
SNOW MAKING
113-7478985-6329019 11/15/2023 163.04 0.00 163.04

F’_ri‘nted 1/05/2024 3:34PM By LBROOKNER WATERVILLE ESTATES

T’age 1



Check Manifest - by Payee

Date:  12/31/2023 Batch ID: 136 BANK OF NH - DISTRICT
Payment# Type Check Date  Vendor ID Payee -
Invoice # PO # Invoice Date Invoice Amount Discount Taken Amount Paid
01.1150.000.004 / AR - WEA 163.04
SNOW MAKING
113-7796630-1973039 12/06/2023 38.24 0.00 38.24
01.4522.003.662 / SKI - SKI ARE; REPAIRS 38.24_
113-7841070-4989027 12/27/2023 9.99 0.00 9.99
| 01.4522.003.662 / SKI - SKI AREA REPAIRS - 9.99
113-874381-3295408 12/27/2023 81.07 0.00 81.07
01.4314.003.611/ BS;G - ;M_AJ_ TOOLS 81.07 |
113-8763069-3375419 11/27/2023 140.99 0.00 140.99
01.1150.000.004 / AR - WEA 140.99
SNOW MAKING
114-1148233-2731409 12/30/2023 143.71 0.00 143.71
01.4314.003.614 / B&G - CLEANING SUPPLIES 143.71
114-7923181-1664267 12/16/2023 222.72 0.00 222.72
01.4314.003.614 / B&G - CLEANING SUPP_LIES N 222,72
772502 12/14/2023 1,208.85 0.00 1,208.85
| - E4524.003.631 / POOL - POOL REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 1,208.85 )
Total Check #: 0_ - 3,075.78
0 SYSTJ 12/31/2023 _5640 CHAR:E;COMMUNICATIONS
0046907121223 12/12/2023 188.38 0.00 188.38
01.4312.002.350 / HWY - TELEPHONE & INTERNET 1538 -
Total Check #: 0 o 18?38
0 SYSTEM 12/31/2023 810 C M WHITCHER RUBBISH REMOVAL LLC B
102177 12/22/2023 130.00 0.00 130.00
01:3‘i4.003.616 / B&G - TRASH REMOVAL ) 130.00 o -
Total Check #: 0 130.00
0 SYSTEM 12?1/2023 1350 - CONSOLIDAT;) COMMUNICATIONS - -
113275470753 12-12-23 12/12/2023 59.01 0.00 59.01
01.4520.002.350 / REC - TELEPHONE 59.01
Total Check #: 0 59.01

Printed 1/05/2024 3:34PM By LBROOKNER WATERVILLE ESTATES Page 2



Check Manifest - by Payee

Date:  12/31/2023 Batch ID: 136 BANK OF NH - DISTRICT
Payment # Type Check Date  Vendor ID Payee
Invoice # PO # Invoice Date Invoice Amount Discount Taken Amount Paid
0 SYSTEM 12/31/2023 1300 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICATIONS
6034062057157 12-24-23 12/24/2023 3.60 0.00 3.60
01.4299.001.813 / PSAFE - ALARM - FIRE TELEPONE LINES 3.60
Total Check #: 0 3.60
0 SYSTEM 12/31/2023 1290 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICATIONS
6034061840317 12-24-23 12/24/2023 121.00 0.00 121.00
01.4299.001.813 / PSAFE - ALARM - FIRE TELEPONE LINES 121.00
Total Check #: 0 121.00
0 SYSTEM 12/31/2023 1650 DOMAIN LISTINGS
DL-2351-3562 12/05/2023 288.00 0.00 288.00
01.4130.002.320 / EXEC - LICENSES & FEES 288.00
Total Check #: 0 288.00
0 SYSTEM 12/31/2023 1660 DOMAIN NETWORKS
SPY85302 12/29/2023 289.00 0.00 289.00
01.4130.002.320 / EXEC - LICENSES & FEES 289.00
Total Check #: 0 289.00
0 SYSTEM 12/31/2023 9617 FIRST BANK -0904 CS
0904 CREDIT 12-1-23 12/01/2023 -825.00 0.00 -825.00
01.4312.002.820 / HWY - EQUIPMENT RENTAL -825.00
0904 DEC INTEREST 12/28/2023 169.20 0.00 159.20
01.4130.002.325 / EXEC - INTEREST & LATE FEES 159.20
2102-6234-2805 GOOGLE 12/01/2023 897.60 0.00 897.60
01.4130.002.320 / EXEC - LICENSES & FEES 299.20
01.4520.002.320 / REC - LICENSES & FEES 299.20
02.4331.520.320 / WTR - LICENSES AND FEEES 299.20
319809 12/12/2023 40.50 0.00 40.50
01.4130.002.620 / EXEC - MISCELLANEQUS EXPENSSE 13.50
01.4520.003.620 / REC - MISC EXPENSES 13.50
02.4331.520.620 / WTR - MISCELLANEQOUS EXPENSE 13.50
Printed 1/05/2024 3:34PM By LBROOKNER WATERVILLE ESTATES o Page 3



Check Manifest - by Payee

Date: 12/31/2023 Batch ID: 136 BANK OF NH - DISTRICT
Payment# Type CheckDate  Vendor ID Payee
Invoice # PO # Invoice Date Invoice Amount Discount Taken Amount Paid
GOOGLE 12-1-23 12/01/2023 100.80 0.00 100.80
01.4130.002.320 / EXEC - LICENSES & FEES 33.60
01.4520.002.320 / REC - LICENSES & FEES 33.60
02.4331.520.320 / WTR - LICENSES AND FEEES 33.60
P1-89882302 11/30/2023 298.40 0.00 298.40
01.4130.002.320 / EXEC - LICENSES & FEES 99.47
01.4520.002.320 / REC - LICENSES & FEES 99.46
02.4331.520.320 / WTR - LICENSES AND FEEES 99.47
Total Check #: 0 671.50
0 SYSTEM 12/31/2023 2850 IRVING ENERGY
5416245 12/31/2023 7.48 0.00 7.48
01.4130.002.325 / EXEC - INTEREST & LATE FEES 7.48
635784 12/28/2023 836.76 0.00 836.76
01.4312.002.823 / HWY - DIESEL 836.76
Total Check #: 0 844.24
0 SYSTEM 12/31/2023 8010 MORGAN CLARK
1-6-23 ENTERTAINMENT 12/31/2023 450.00 0.00 450.00
03.4522.003.611 / SKI - ENTERTAINMENT 450.00
Total Check #: 0 450.00
0 SYSTEM 12/31/2023 4070 NEEDHAM ELECTRIC SUPPLY CORP.
$6128595.001 12/05/2023 142.89 0.00 142.89
01.4314.003.630 / B&G - BUILDING REPAIRS 142.89
$6129589.001 12/06/2023 33.57 0.00 33.57
01.4522.003.662 / SKI - SKI AREA REPAIRS 33.57
$6130447.001 12/08/2023 -142.89 0.00 -142.89
01.4314.003.630 / B&G - BUILDING REPAIRS -142.89
Total Check #: 0 33.57
0 SYSTEM 12/31/2023 4150 NEW HAMPSHIRE LIQUOR COMMISSION
073407 12/19/2023 37.98 0.00 37.98

Printed 1/05/2024 3:34PM By LBROOKNER WATERVILLE ESTATES Page 4



Check Manifest - by Payee

Date:  12/31/2023 Batch ID: 136 BANK OF NH - DISTRICT
Payment# Type Check Date  Vendor ID Payee
Invoice # PO # Invoice Date Invoice Amount Discount Taken Amount Paid
03.3409.001.006 / COG - LIQUOR 37.98
230065026538 12/26/2023 458.80 0.00 458.80
03.3409.001.008 / COG - WINE 346.84
03.3409.001.006 / COG - LIQUOR 111.96
230065026748 12/29/2023 256.38 0.00 256.38
03.3409.001.006 / COG - LIQUOR 256.38
Total Check #: 1] 753.16
0 SYSTEM 12/31/2023 4800 PFG-83114
7496699 12/28/2023 1,872.95 0.00 1,872.95
03.4522.003.612 / SKI - KITCHEN SUPPLIES 229.54
03.3409.001.002 / COG - FOOD 1,643.41
Total Check #: 0 1,872.95
0 SYSTEM 12/31/2023 4840 PIKE INDUSTRIES
1263507 12/15/2023 1,208.54 0.00 1,208.54
01.4312.002.819/ HWY - ROAD SAND & SALT 1,208.54
Total Check #: 0 1,208.54
0 SYSTEM 12/31/2023 4860 PLODZIK & SANDERSON
22-19438F 12/27/2023 4,350.00 0.00 4,350.00
01.4130.002.301/ EXEC - ACCOUNT & AUDTING 4,350.00
Total Check #: 0 4,350.00
0 SYSTEM 12/31/2023 8410 SAMANTHA BANVILLE
111-5521258-9493051 11/24/2023 51.84 0.00 51.84
03.3409.003.001 / COGS - EVENTS 51.84
112-0777553-2108224 12/12/2023 39.99 0.00 39.99
03.4522.003.612 / SK! - KITCHEN SUPPLIES 39.99
112-1941592-8817030 12/13/2023 17.99 0.00 17.99
03.3409.003.001 / COGS - EVENTS 17.99
334900363679 12/15/2023 73.90 0.00 73.90
03.3409.003.001 / COGS - EVENTS 73.90
Printed 1/05/2024 3:34PM By LBROOKNER WATERVILLE ESTATES Page 5



Check Manifest - by Payee

Date:  12/31/2023 Batch ID: 136 BANK OF NH - DISTRICT
Payment# Type Check Date  Vendor ID Payee
Invoice # PO # Invoice Date Invoice Amount Discount Taken Amount Paid
572185555001 12/16/2023 22.44 0.00 22.44
03.3409.003.001 / COGS - EVENTS 22.44
573341461001 12/15/2023 27.63 0.00 27.63
03.3409.003.001 / COGS - EVENTS 27.63
731 12/18/2023 21.90 0.00 21.90
01.4520.002.625 / REC - POSTAGE 21.90
Total Check #: 0 255.69
0 SYSTEM 12/31/2023 5630 SPECTRUM
0020530122723 12/27/2023 564.93 0.00 564.93
01.4521.002.351/FD - CELL PHONE 2499
01.4520.002.345 / REC - CABLE 22.20
01.4520.002.345 / REC - CABLE 156.92
01.4312.002.350 / HWY - TELEPHONE & INTERNET 114.99
01.4520.002.344 / REC - INTERENET 114.99
01.4312.002.350 / HWY - TELEPHONE & INTERNET 25.00
01.4520.002.351 / REC - CELL PHONE 24.99
01.4312.002.350 / HWY - TELEPHONE & INTERNET 25,00
01.4520.002.351 / REC - CELL PHONE 24.99
01.4521.002.351 / FD - CELL PHONE 2.93
01.4312.002.350 / HWY - TELEPHONE & INTERNET 25.00
01.4312.002.350 / HWY - TELEPHONE & INTERNET 2.93
Total Check #: 0 564.93
0 SYSTEM 12/31/2023 5700 STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE
1652507811 11/25/2023 -272.05 0.00 -272.05
01.4130.002.610 / EXEC - OFFICE SUPPLIES -272.05
7614263825-0-1 8/30/2023 110.44 0.00 110.44
01.4521.003.610/ FD - SUPPLIES 54.45
01.4130.002.610 / EXEC - OFFICE SUPPLIES 18.66
01.4520.002.610 / REC - OFFICE SUPPLIES 18.66
02.4331.520.610 / WTR - OFFICE SUPPLIES 18.67
7617697684-0-1 9/30/2023 908.99 0.00 908.99
01.4130.002.610 / EXEC - OFFICE SUPPLIES 908.99
7619464400-0-1 11/20/2023 110.38 0.00 110.38
01.4130.002.610 / EXEC - OFFICE SUPPLIES 36.79
Printed 1/05/2024 3:34PM By LBROOKNER WATERVILLE ESTATES Page 6



Check Manifest - by Payee

Date:  12/31/2023 Batch ID: 136 BANK OF NH - DISTRICT
Payment# Type Check Date  Vendor ID Payee
Invoice # PO # Invoice Date Invoice Amount Discount Taken Amount Paid
01.4520.002.610 / REC - OFFICE SUPPLIES 36.79
02.4331.520.610 / WTR - OFFICE SUPPLIES 36.80
7621877211-0-2 12/26/2023 203.07 0.00 203.07
01.4314.003.614 / B&G - CLEANING SUPPLIES 203.07
7622487811-0-1 12/26/2023 138.02 0.00 138.02
01.4130.002.610 / EXEC - OFFICE SUPPLIES 138.02
Total Check #: 0 1,198.85
0 SYSTEM 12/31/2023 5790 STATE OF NH DEPT. OF SAFETY
YEAR: 2023-2024 12/30/2023 937.60 0.00 937.60
01.4522.003.662 / SKI - SKI AREA REPAIRS 937.60
Total Check #: 0 937.60
0 SYSTEM 12/31/2023 9674 TECHNO ALPIN
VRG-US-23.00894 12/11/2023 2,033.89 0.00 2,033.89
01.4522.003.662 / SKI - SKI AREA REPAIRS 2,033.89
Total Check #: 0 2,033.89
0 SYSTEM 12/31/2023 9480 TRACTOR SUPPLY CO
452868 12/14/2023 194.95 0.00 194.95
01.4312.002.610 / HWY - SHOP SUPPLIES 194.95
455068 12/29/2023 168.94 0.00 168.94
01.4312.002.610 / HWY - SHOP SUPPLIES 46.97
01.4312.002.611 / HWY - SMALL TOOLS 121.97
Total Check #: 0 363.89
0 SYSTEM 12/31/2023 6100 TRACY DUFFY
016352 12/09/2023 30.08 0.00 30.08
01.4130.002.622 / EXEC - ANNUAL EMPLOYEE PARTY 30.08
5632 12/18/2023 496.91 0.00 496.91
01.4130.002.622 / EXEC - ANNUAL EMPLOYEE PARTY 496.91
Total Check #: 0 526.99
Printed 1/05/2024 3:34PM By LBROOKNER B WATERVILLE ESTATES Pag; 7



Check Manifest - by Payee

Date: 12/31/2023 Batch ID: 136 BANK OF NH - DISTRICT
Payment# Type Check Date  Vendor ID Payee
Invoice # PO # Invoice Date Invoice Amount Discount Taken Amount Paid
0 SYSTEM 12/31/2023 6190 UNIFIRST CORPORATION
1070286168 12/21/2023 110.66 0.00 110.66
03.4523.002.611 / LNG - KITCHEN SUPPLIES 110.66
1070287768 12/28/2023 93.26 0.00 93.26
03.4523.002.611 / LNG - KITCHEN SUPPLIES 93.26
Total Check #: 203.92
0 SYSTEM 12/31/2023 9672 UNITED CONSTRUCTION & FORESTRY
10327636 11/30/2023 966.01 0.00 966.01
01.4312.002.824 / HWY - EQUIPMENT MAINTNANCE 1,770.65
01.4312.002.824 / HWY - EQUIPMENT MAINTNANCE -804.64
8/10/23 OVERPAYMENT
Total Check #: 966.01
0 SYSTEM 12/31/2023 9622 US STANDARD PRODUCTS
7662155 12/15/2023 2,666.83 0.00 2,666.83
01.4522.003.662 / SKI - SKI AREA REPAIRS 1,421.62
01.4314.003.615/ B&G - SUPPLIES 1,245.21
Total Check #: 2,666.83
0 SYSTEM 12/31/2023 6680 XEROX FINANCIAL SERVICES
5211362 12/20/2023 423.75 0.00 423.75
01.4130.002.618 / EXEC - COPIER LEASE 141.25
01.4520.002.618 / REC - COPIER LEASE 141.25
02.4331.520.618 / WTR - COPIER LEASE 141.25
Total Check #: 423,75

Printed 1/0572024 3:34PM

By LBROOKNER WATERVILLE ESTATES
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Check Manifest - by Payee

Date:  12/31/2023 Batch ID: 136 BANK OF NH - DISTRICT
Payment# Type Cr_leck Date  Vendor ID Payee -
Invoice # PO # Invoice Date Invoice Amount Discount Taken Amount Paid
12/31/2023 Check Manifest Batch: 136 Chk Count: 30 Total Amnt: 25,368.79
--- Subtotals by Fund -

Fund Description Amount

01 VILLAGE DISTRICT FUND 21,142.48

02 WATER FUND 642.49

03 RECREATION FUND 3,5683.82

--- Signatures ---

Ron Beard, General Manager

Maureen Patti, Commissioner-Chair

Dave Spinney, Commissioner

Gerald Panuczak, Commissioner

Printed 1/05/2024 3:34PM By LBROOKNER WATERVILLE ESTATES Page 1



Check Manifest - by Payee

Date:  12/31/2023 Batch ID: 135 BANK OF NH - WATER
Payment# Type Check Date  Vendor ID Payee
Invoice # PO # Invoice Date Invoice Amount Discount Taken Amount Paid
0 SYSTEM 12/31/2023 4490 CARDMEMBER SERVICE
974 12/08/2023 132.00 0.00 132.00
02.4331.520.625/ WTR - POSTAGE 132.00
Total Check #: 0 132.00
0 SYSTEM 12/31/2023 1730 DUBOIS & KING, INC.
1223203 12/20/2023 140.00 0.00 140.00
02.4331.520.862 / WTR - ENGINEERING 140.00
Total Check #: 0 140.00
0 SYSTEM 12/31/2023 9675 NEW HAMPSHIRE MUNICIPAL BOND BANK
23B 12/15/2023 6,069.60 0.00 6,069.60
02.4721.520.001/ DEBT - INTEREST PAYMENTS 6,069.60
Total Check #: 0 6,069.60
0 SYSTEM 12/31/2023 89625 SALMON PRESS
576145 11/30/2023 40.00 0.00 40.00
02.4331.520.305/ WTR - ADVERTISING 40.00
Total Check #: 0 40.00
0 SYSTEM 12/31/2023 9490 TREASURER, STATE OF NH
197224 12/26/2023 15.00 0.00 15.00
02.4331.520.860 / WTR - WATER TESTING 15.00
197240 12/26/2023 30.00 0.00 30.00
02.4331.520.860 / WTR - WATER TESTING 30.00
Total Check #: 0 45.00
0 SYSTEM 12/31/2023 9676 ZORO TOOLS, INC.
INV13495803 12/27/2023 4,242.99 0.00 4,242.99
02.4903.490.011 / CAP - PUMP PHASE REPLACEMENT 4,242 .99
Total Check #: 0 4,242.99

Printed 1/05/2024 3:38PM

By LBROOKNER WATERVILLE ESTATES

Page 1



Check Manifest - by Payee

Date:  12/31/2023 Batch ID: 135 BANK OF NH - WATER
Payment# Type Check Date  Vendor ID Payee
Invoice # PO # Invoice Date Invoice Amount Discount Taken Amount Paid
12/31/2023 Check Manifest Batch: 135 Chk Count: 6 Total Amnt: 10,669.59
-— Subtotals by Fund ---
Fund Description Amount
02 WATER FUND 10,669.59
--- Sighatures ---
Ron Beard, General Manager
Maureen Patti, Commissioner-Chair
Dave Spinney, Commissioner
Gerald Panuczak, Commissioner
Printed 1/05/2024 3:38PM By LBROOKNER WATERVILLE ESTATES Page 1



66 Main Street, Suite B Telephone: (603) 279-0352
Plymouth, NH 03264 Toll Free: (866) 501-0352

119 International Drive Municipal all@mrigov.com
Portsmouth, NH 03801 Resources, Inc. www.mrigov.com

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

L PARTIES TO THE AGREEMENT

This Agreement, dated £ %(264 2 f is to retain professional consulting services for Waterville
Estates Village District (the Client), to be provided by Municipal Resources, Inc. (MRI), and is lawfully
entered into between the District, by Ron Beard, General Manager and MRI by its authorized
representative, Christian Pearsall, CFO.

. SCOPE OF WORK

In general, provide payroll services to the District to ensure that employees are paid accurately, in a
timely manner and in accordance with all applicable state and federal guidelines and regulations.

SCOPE OF WORK

1. Managed Payroll Services
MRI staff will:

a. Verify payroll transactions submitted by the District via TimeClock Plus or other means
for accuracy and adherence to applicable laws and regulations.

b. Review payroll for accuracy and adherence to federal and state laws, and District
policies.

c. Generate weekly and quarterly payroll including ACH files containing employee and
vendor payments, employee and vendor checks, direct deposit confirmations, General
Ledger batches, and all other associated documents related to unique payroll runs.

d. Accruals - MRI will be responsible to set-up and process accruals and use of accrued
time through the payroll system as submitted through Timeclock Plus.

e. Payroll Liability — MRI will reconcile all payroll liabilities and post payments to vendors
as needed.

f. New Hampshire Retirement System (NHRS) — Ensure payrolls are compliant with NHRS
requirements and submit monthly reporting.

g. Monthly —reconcile payroll deductions, generate files, and report to NHRS.

h. Quarterly - reconcile and submit state and federal reporting.

i, Annually - reconcile, report and prepare employee W2, and all associated year-end tax
reporting requirements. W2 delivered to District directly for distribution to employees.




j. Employee Updates — MRI will verify employee updates entered by the District for
accuracy and compliance with policies.

k. ACA Employee tracking and reporting.

District’s Responsibility

1. The District will provide any timesheets or related documents required for timely payroll
processing by an established day and time.

2. District will enter new hire and employee changes provided by the Town and provide MRI with
copies of the changes.

3. District will be responsible for uploading files generated by MRI to the appropriate financial
institution including Direct Deposit/ACH files and Positive Pay files.

4. ACCRUALS - It is the responsibility of the employee and department head to be aware of
balances and discrepancies and notify MRI if any adjustments needs to be made.

Timekeeping System

MRI will provide the use of TimeClock Plus software or similar timekeeping system to allow District
employees to track, submit, approve and report hours worked. MRI staff will configure and maintain
this system to ensure proper integration with the District’s payroll system.

MRI and Client agree that during this on-going service relationship that each party may disclose
certain information to the other party including, but not limited to, payroll information, employee
payroll records, business affairs, product plans, business strategies, finances, fee structures and other
proprietary information. Such information individually and collectively constitutes "Confidential
Information". All such Confidential Information shall remain the sole property of the disclosing party
and the receiving party will have no interest or rights with respect thereto. Each party agrees to
maintain the Confidential Information in trust and confidence except as required to perform its
obligations hereunder to the same extent that it protects its own proprietary information, and further
agrees to take all reasonable precautions to prevent any unauthorized disclosure of such information.

hl. FEES AND CHARGES

Our services for this project will be provided for a lump sum annual fee of $16,250.00 billed in twelve
equal monthly installments. Payments will be made within 30 days of receipt of invoice, unless
otherwise agreed. This fee is subject to an annual adjustment.

Any services that fall outside of the scope of work above, including the reconciliation or
assistance with payroll activities that fall within the scope of work, but were performed prior

to MRI’s start date, will be billed at the following rates:

Certified Payroll Specialist/

Senior Payroll Consultant $95.00/hour
Payroll Associate $55.00/hour
Professional Services Agreement — Managed Payroll Services Page 2
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V. MRI PERSONNEL IN CHARGE

Christian Pearsall will serve as Principal-In-Charge of this engagement. Carrie Sawyer will act as lead
consultant for this project. Additional team members may be assigned based upon specific needs,
with the approval of the General Manager.

Communications or correspondence related to any problems, issues, or changes required for this
project shall be directed to the Client at the following address:

The Client: To MRI:

Waterville Estates Village District Municipal Resources, Inc.

Ron Beard, General Manager 66 Main Street, Suite B

562 Winterbrook Rd Plymouth, NH 03264

Campton, NH 03223 603-279-0352 or cpearsall@mrigov.com
V. TERM

This agreement shall be for a period of one year, beginning with the first payroll run of 2024 and is
subject to annual renewal with written agreement from both parties. Either party may terminate the
Agreement with 30 days advance written notice to the other party.

THIS CONTRACT IS SUBJECT TO THE PROVISIONS CONTAINED IN ADDENDUM |, ATTACHED HERETO
AND INCORPORATED HEREWITH.

ACCEPTED AND AGREED
WATERVILLE ESTATES MUNICIPAL RESOURCES, INC.
Ron Beard, General Manager Christian Pearsall, CFO/Treasurer

Date: /F* 24 2’; Date:

Professional Services Agreement — Managed Payroll Services Page 3
Waterville Estates Village District, New Hampshire

Prepared by Municipal Resources, Inc.

December 2023




ADDENDUM |

A. MUTUAL REPRESENTATIONS

MRI represents to the Client it is a duly constituted corporation under the laws of the State of New
Hampshire and is authorized to do business within this State as a professional services corporation.

MRI has in force and effect general commercial liability and errors and omissions insurance coverage to
protect the Client from accidents which MRI or its authorized representatives may cause to persons or

property or from professional errors or omissions when performing under this agreement.

MRI has no liens or encumbrances which would adversely affect the ability of MRI to perform as
stipulated under this agreement, its terms and conditions.

The Client represents to MRI that sufficient funds have been appropriated so it may retain and
compensate MRI for the services provided for herein.

The Client's representative is authorized to enter into this agreement on behalf of the Client.
The Client is aware of no action, contemplated action, liability or other encumbrance which would limit or
otherwise preclude the Client from freely entering into this agreement and compensating MRI for the

services provided.

B. NOTICE OF CHANGE OF PERSONNEL

Except as otherwise provided below, the MRI consultants assigned to any scope of work or project will
remain throughout the duration of that specific scope of work or project. MRI retains the right, upon 30
days written notice, to remove from the project any of its consultants whom it believes can no longer
suitably perform under its obligations to this agreement or any Supplement to it.

The Client, upon 30 days written notice, may request MRI to replace any of its consultants with another
qualified representative.

C. ADMINISTRATION OF AGREEMENT MODIFICATIONS

In all cases where this agreement is modified or expanded a written Supplemental Scope of Work
(Supplement) must be prepared which clearly defines the services to be provided and details the
billing rates or amounts to be charged by MRI and paid by the Client. Supplements must be executed
by the authorized representatives of the respective parties prior to any billable work being
undertaken. The Supplement(s) shall identify:

Professional Services Agreement — Managed Payroll Services Page 4
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° The MRI officer or principal responsible for the successful delivery of services and/or
project completion and the client's contracting official(s) or officer(s);

° The specific details of the work to be performed;
The MRI personnel to be assigned;
° The basis upon which MRI services are being retained, including the normal hourly

rate(s), cost reduction considerations or the agreed upon fee(s) for the personnel
assigned and/or the services provided,;

«© The Client’s contact person responsible for administering the Supplement, activities or
project and the associated reporting requirements; and
& Any special or other conditions such as time deadlines, special reporting requirements,

budget limitations, or other similar constraints.

D. INDEMNIFICATION

The Client agrees to hold harmless, indemnify, and defend MRI, its agents, employees, and affiliates,
while acting for and on behalf of the Client as if MRI, its agents, employees, and affiliates, were acting
in the capacity of full-time permanent employees of the Client.

E. NON-SOLICITATION

The Client agrees that, for a period of one-year following the completion of the terms of this Agreement,
they shall not, directly or indirectly, hire, solicit, or otherwise encourage any MRI personnel or affiliates
assigned to this Agreement, to leave MRI's employment.

In the alternative, if the client should wish to hire any MRI personnel or affiliate assigned to this
Agreement it agrees to compensate MRI with payment in the amount of 25% of that person’s first year's
total compensation package.

Initialed for Client: /ﬁé Initialed for MRI:
Date: J2—FC — P23 Date:

Professional Services Agreement — Managed Payroll Services Page 5
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W aterville

Estates !

562 Winterbrook Road, Campton, NH 03223
Phone: (603) 726-3082 | Fax: (603) 726-8611

www.waterville-estatesnh.gov

REQUEST FOR COMMISSION ACTION (RCA)

Instructions: Please complete to the best of your ability. Completed forms are to be sent to Management (GM
& AGM) and no later than 10 days in advance of the WEVD Commission meeting indicated below. The
Commission Chair shall decide and notify the GM/others if the RCA is included on the meeting agenda.

Meeting Date: Agenda Item #:

Name of Requestor: Thomas Schelling

Waterville Estates Address: 7 Holland Trail

Title of Request: __ Water Issues

Summary of why action is sought (please provide as much background as possible): I would like a break on
my water bill since there was a 3 month period or so we did not have water multiple times. Usually on
weekends when there was a lot of use down hill from us. Every weekend we couldn’t shower or do dishes
or laundry. We often had to shower at fiends or at the rec. center. Since the problem was repaired, we
have very low water pressure. | would like to see the pressure increased to the point where it was prior to
the pressure valve problem on Holland Trail. Our pressure is under 30 PSI. We can use the water as is,
but the pressure when using the sinks etc. is very low.

Action requested: Return money that we paid for water when we had none. Figure out how to give us
higher pressure.

Goal sought with this action: Money returned for water payment. Increased pressure in our house.

FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY
Budget implications:

Plan for implementation:

Request for Commission Action Form
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of the Board of Commissioners
Waterville Estates Village District
Campton, New Hampshire

Report on the Financial Statements

Adverse and Unmodified Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund
(governmental and proprietary), and aggregate remaining fund information of the Waterville Estates Village District as of and for
the year ended December 31, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Summary of Opinions

Opinion Unit Type of Opinion
Governmental Activities Adverse
Business-type Activities Adverse

Major Governmental Fund - General Fund Unmodified
Major Governmental Fund - Water Fund Unmodified
Major Recreation Proprietary Fund Adverse
Aggregate Remaining Fund Information Unmodified

Adverse Opinion on Governmental Activities and Business-type Activities and Proprietary Fund

In our opinion, because of the significance of the matters described in the “Matters Giving Rise to Adverse Opinion on
Governmental Activities, Business-type Activities and Proprietary Fund” paragraphs, the financial statements referred to above
do not present fairly the financial position of the Governmental Activities, Business-type Activities and Proprietary Fund of the
Waterville Estates Village District as of December 31, 2022, or the changes in financial position thereof for the year then ended
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Unmodified Opinions on Each Major Funds and Aggregate Remaining Fund Information

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position
of the each major governmental fund and aggregate remaining fund information of the Waterville Estates Village District as of
December 31, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position and the respective budgetary comparison for the general
fund and water fund, for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Basis for Adverse and Unmodified Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements™ section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Waterville Estates Village District and to meet our
other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.



Waterville Estates Village District
Independent Auditor’s Report

Matters Giving Rise to Adverse Opinion on Governmental Activities, Business-type Activities and
Proprietary Fund

As discussed in Note 11-B to the financial statements, management has not recorded the long-term costs of retirement healthcare
costs and obligations for other postemployment benefits for the single employer plan in the governmental activities, business-
type activities, and proprietary fund. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that those
costs be recorded, which would increase the liabilities, decrease the net position and increase the expenses of the governmental
activities, business-type activities, and proprietary fund. The amount by which this departure would affect the liabilities, net
position, and expenses on the governmental activities, business-type activities, and proprietary fund is not readily determinable.

We were unable to adequately observe or obtain sufficient audit evidence to otherwise support the year-end inventory counts
related to the recreation fund. Variances in inventory accounts would affect the assets, net position, and expenses of the
business-type activities and proprietary fund. The amount by which this departure would affect the assets, net position, and
expenses of the business-type activities and proprietary fund is not readily determinable.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The Waterville Estates Village District’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in
the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Waterville Estates Village District’s ability to continue as a going concern
for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial
doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance isa
high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood
that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

o  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Waterville Estate’s
internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial
doubt about the Waterville Estates Village District’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of
time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 2-D to the financial statements, in fiscal year 2022 the District adopted new accounting guidance,
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 87, Leases. Our opinions are not modified with respect to
this matter.



Waterville Estates Village District
Independent Auditor’s Report

Required Supplementary Information — Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that
the following be presented to supplement the basic financial statements:

Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability,

Schedule of District Contributions — Pensions,

Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Other Postemployment Benefits Liability,
Schedule of District Contributions — Other Postemployment Benefits, and

Notes to the Required Supplementary Information

Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis — Management has omitted a Management’s Discussion and Analysis that accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not
affected by the missing information.

Supplementary Information — Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Waterville Estates Village District’s basic financial statements. The accompanying individual fund
schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The individual fund schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the individual fund schedules are fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Phadaib g Samdanaon,
<Y ByrA A .
December 21, 2023 '}' = L‘ t}f“ " 4;&.’ L

Concord, New Hampshire L.ﬁ L



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



EXHIBIT A
WATERVILLE ESTATES VILLAGE DISTRICT
Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2022

Govemmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,047,600 $ 63,367 $ 1,110,967
Taxes receivables (net) 894,926 - 894,926
Account receivables 96,561 147 96,708
Internal balances 188,465 (188,465) -
Inventory - 42,774 42,774
Prepaid items 24,767 - 24,767
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress 319,020 - 319,020
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 2,021,967 402,820 2,424,787
Total assets 4,593,306 320,643 4,913,949
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Amounts related to pensions 336,762 59,736 396,498
Amounts related to other postemployment benefits 998 177 1,175
Total deferred outflows of resources 337,760 59,913 397,673
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 263,171 21,878 285,049
Accrued salaries and benefits 18,293 - 18,293
Accrued interest payable 4,791 - 4,791
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year 67,017 - 67,017
Due in more than one year 824,162 128,727 952,889
Total liabilities 1,177,434 150,605 1,328,039
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - user charges 284,064 - 284,064
Amounts related to pensions 33,319 5,910 39,229
Total deferred inflows of resources 317,383 5,910 323,293
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 2,139,980 402,820 2,542,800
Unrestricted 1,296,269 (178,779) 1,117,490
Total net position $ 3,436,249 $ 224,041 $ 3,660,290

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT B

WATERVILLE ESTATES VILLAGE DISTRICT

Statement of Activities

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2022

Program
Revenues Net (Expense) Revenue and
Charges Change in Net Position
for Governmental Business-type
Expenses Services Activities Activities Total
Governmental activities:
General government $ 915867 $ - 3 (915,867) $ - $ (915,867)
Public safety 17,089 - (17,089) - (17,089)
Highways and streets 382,837 - (382,837) - (382,837)
Water distribution and treatment 410,773 596,498 185,725 - 185,725
Culture and recreation 978,352 - (978,352) - (978,352)
Interest on long-term debt 7,729 - (7,729) - (7,729)
Total governmental activities 2,712,647 596,498 (2,116,149) . (2,116,149)
Business-type activities:
Recreation 605,271 480,049 - (125,222) (125,222)
Total $ 3317918 $§ 1,076,547 (2,116,149) (125,222) (2,241,371)
General revenues:
Taxes:
Property 1,619,834 - 1,619,834
Other 6,807 - 6,807
Unrestricted investment earnings 1,327 19 1,346
Miscellaneous 573,735 - 573,735
Total general revenues 2,201,703 19 2,201,722
Change in net position 85,554 (125,203) (39,649)
Net position, beginning 3,350.695 349,244 3,699,939
Net position, ending $ 3,436,249 § 224,041 $ 3,660,290

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT C-1
WATERVILLE ESTATES VILLAGE DISTRICT
Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2022

Other Total
Governmental Governmental
General Water Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 694,452 $ 353,148 $ - $ 1,047,600
Taxes receivable 954,926 - - 954,926
Accounts receivable 51,760 44,801 - 96,561
Interfund receivable 213,996 108,223 - 322,219
Prepaid items 16,752 8,015 - 24,767
Total assets $ 1,931,886 $ 514,187 % - $ 2,446,073
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 192,872 $ 70299 § - $ 263,171
Accrued salaries and benefits 17,079 1,214 - 18,293
Interfund payable 108,223 - 25,531 133,754
Total liabilities 318,174 71,513 25,531 415,218
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 232,878 - - 232,878
Unavailable revenue - user charges - 284,064 - 284,064
Total deferred inflows of resources 232,878 284,064 - 516,942
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT)
Nonspendable 16,752 8,015 - 24,767
Committed 259,881 150,595 - 410,476
Unassigned (deficit) 1,104,201 - (25,531) 1,078,670
Total fund balances (deficit) 1,380,834 158,610 (25,531) 1,513,913
Total liabilities, deferred inflows
of resources, and fund balances $ 1,931,886 $ 514,187 $ - $ 2,446,073

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT C-2
WATERVILLE ESTATES VILLAGE DISTRICT
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2022

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net
Position are different because:

Total fund balances of governmental funds (Exhibit C-1) $ 1,513,913

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources,
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

Cost $ 5,831,018
Less accumulated depreciation (3.490,031)
2,340,987
Pension and other postemployment benefit (OPEB) related deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources are not due and payable in the current year, and
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds as follows:
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions $ 336,762
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions (33,319)
Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB 998
304,441
Interfund receivables and payables between governmental funds are
eliminated on the Statement of Net Position.
Receivables $  (133,754)
Payables 133,754
Property taxes are recognized on an accrual basis in the Statement of
Net Position and on a modified accrual basis in the governmental funds.
Deferred inflows of resources - property taxes $ 232,878
Allowance for uncollectible property taxes (60,000)
172,878
Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in governmental funds.
Accrued interest payable 4,791)
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period,
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.
Notes $ 201,007
Compensated absences 21,981
Net pension liability 654,815
Other postemployment benefits 13,376
(891,179)
Net position of governmental activities (Exhibit A) $ 3,436,249

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT C-3

WATERVILLE ESTATES VILLAGE DISTRICT

Governmental Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2022

REVENUES
Taxes
Charges for services
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government
Public safety
Highways and streets
Water distribution and treatment
Culture and recreation
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances, beginning
Fund balances, ending

Other Total
Governmental Governmental
General Water Funds Funds
$ 1,547,522 $ - $ - $ 1,547,522
- 596,498 - 596,498
564,300 10,762 - 575,062
2,111,822 607,260 - 2,719,082
701,074 - - 701,074
17,089 - - 17,089
367,812 - - 367,812
- 368,423 - 368,423
833,917 B - 833,917
40,000 19,615 - 59,615
3,342 1,813 - 5,155
267,227 58,799 225,531 551,557
2,230,461 448,650 225,531 2,904,642
(118,639) 158,610 (225,531) (185,560)
1,499,473 - 200,000 1,699,473
§ 1,380,834 $ 158,610 $ (25,531) § 1.513913

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT C-4
WATERVILLE ESTATES VILLAGE DISTRICT
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds (o the Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2022

Net change in fund balances of governmental funds (Exhibit C-3)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activitics
are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures, while governmental activities
report depreciation expense to allocate those expenditures over the life of the assets.
Capital outlay expenditures exceeded depreciation expense in the current year, as follows:

Capitalized capital outlay $ 407,122
Depreciation expense (187,436)

Revenue in the Statement of Activities that does not provide current financial
resources is not reported as revenue in the governmental funds.
Change in deferred inflows of resources - property taxes

Repayment of long-term liabilities is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment
reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.
Repayment of notes

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the
use of current financial resources, and therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds.

Increase in accrued interest expense $ @574
Increase in compensated absences payable (5,597)
Net change in net pension liability, and deferred

outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions (71,568)

Net change in net other postemployment benefits liability and deferred

outflows and inflows of resources related to other postemployment benefits (7,567)

Changes in net position of governmental activities (Exhibit B)

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT D-1
WATERVILLE ESTATES VILLAGE DISTRICT
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
General Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2022

Original Variance
and Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes $ 1,624,909 $ 1,626,641 $ 1,732
Charges for services 226,736 - (226,736)
Miscellaneous 212,402 564,300 351,898
Total revenues 2,064,047 2,190,941 126,894
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 837,737 680,140 157,597
Public safety 13,179 17,089 (3,910)
Highways and streets 534,858 324,052 210,806
Culture and recreation 882,293 790,141 92,152
Debt service:
Principal 40,000 40,000 -
Interest 5,980 3,342 2,638
Capital outlay 120,000 376,591 (256,591)
Total expenditures 2,434,047 2,231,355 202,692
Net change in fund balances $ (370,000) (40,414)  $ 329,586
Increase in nonspendable fund balance (16,752)
Unassigned fund balance, beginning 1,334,245
Unassigned fund balance, ending $ 1,277,079

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT D-2
WATERVILLE ESTATES VILLAGE DISTRICT
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (GAAP Basis/Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Water Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2022

Original Variance
and Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Charges for services $ 532,455 $ 596,498 $ 64,043
Miscellaneous - 10,762 10,762
Total revenues 532,455 607,260 74,805
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Water distribution and treatment 532,455 368,423 164,032
Debt service:
Principal - 19,615 (19,615)
Interest - 1,813 (1,813)
Capital outlay . 58,799 (58,799)
Total expenditures 532,455 448,650 83,805
Net change in fund balances i__ 158,610 _$M
Increase in nonspendable fund balance (8,015)
Committed fund balance, beginning -
Committed fund balance, ending $ 150,595

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
11



EXHIBIT E-1

WATERVILLE ESTATES VILLAGE DISTRICT

Proprietary Funds

Statement of Net Position

December 31, 2022

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Capital assets:
Other capital assets, net of depreciation
Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Amounts related to pensions
Amounts related to other postemployment benefits
Total deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Internal balances
Long term liabilities:
Duc in more than one year
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Amounts related to pensions

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net position

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Business-type
Activities

“Enterprise Fund |
{Recreation Fund)

$ 63,367
147
42,774

402,820
509,108

59,736
177
59,913

21,878
188,465

128,727
339,070

5,910

402,820
(178,779)

$ 224,041




EXHIBIT E-2
WATERVILLE ESTATES VILLAGE DISTRICT
Proprietary Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2022

Business-type
Activities
Enterprise Fund
(Recreation Fund)

Operating revenues:

Rental income $ 48,958

Management fee 100,000

Membership passes 35,486

Food and beverage income 131,982

Recreation income 18,354

Event and function income 14,169

Campton Mountain 131,100

Total operating revenues 480,049
Operating expenses:

Salaries and wages 229,509

Operation and maintenance 80,683

Cost of food, beverage, and supplies 82,216

Lounge expenses 75,703

Ski area 89,597

Member services 10,654

Depreciation 36,909

Total operating expenses 605,271
Operating loss (125,222)
Nonoperating revenue:

Interest income 19
Change in net position (125,203)
Net position, beginning 349,244
Net position, ending $ 224,041

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT E-3
WATERVILLE ESTATES VILLAGE DISTRICT
Proprietary Fund
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2022

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to employees
Payments to suppliers

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Change in interfund borrowing/loans

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received

Net increase in cash
Cash, beginning
Cash, ending

Business-type
Activities

Enterprise Fund
(Recreation Fund)

$ 479,902
(278,828)
(338,906)
(137,832)

161,395

19

23,582
39,785
3 eas67

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Operating loss

Adjustments to reconcile operating gain to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation expense
Decrease in receivables
Decrease in inventory
Increase in accounts payable
Decrease in compensated absences liability
Net change in GASB Statement No. 68 balances relating to pensions
Net change in GASB Statement No. 75 balances relating to OPEB
Total adjustments

Net cash provided by operating activities

$ (125,222)

36,909
(147)
(53)
(12,418)

3,422
(40,747)

424
(12,610)

$ (137,832)

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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WATERVILLE ESTATES VILLAGE DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Waterville Estates Village District, New Hampshire (the District), have been prepared in
conformity with U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) for governmental units as prescribed by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and other authoritative sources.

The more significant of the District’s accounting policies are described below.

1-A Reporting Entity

The Waterville Estates Village District is a municipal corporation governed by an elected 3-member Board of Commissioners.
In evaluating how to define the District for financial reporting purposes, management has considered all potential component
units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the reporting entity is made by applying the criteria set forth by the
GASB. The District has no component units to include in its reporting entity.

1-B Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus

The accounts of the District are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate accounting entity. The
operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, deferred
outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as
appropriate. Governmental resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which
they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled.

Government-wide Financial Statements — The District’s government-wide financial statements include a Statement of Net
Position and a Statement of Activities. These statements present summaries of governmental and business-type activities for the
District accompanied by a total column. Fiduciary activities of the District are not included in these statements.

These statements are presented on an “economic resources” measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.
Accordingly, all of the District’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, including
capital assets and long-term liabilities, are included in the accompanying Statement of Net Position, with the exception of the
long-term costs of retirement healthcare and obligations for other postemployment benefits have been omitted because the
liability and expense have not been determined. The Statement of Activities presents changes in net position. Under the accrual
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned while expenses are recognized in the period
in which the liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. As in the Statement of Net Position the District
has not recorded other postemployment benefit expense in this statement. The types of transactions reported as program
revenues for the District are reported as charges for services.

Certain eliminations have been made to interfund activities, payables, and receivables. All internal balances in the Statement of
Net Position have been eliminated, except those representing balances between the governmental activities and the business-type
activities, which are presented as internal balances and eliminated in the total primary government column.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements — Include a Balance Sheet and a Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balances for all major governmental funds and nonmajor funds aggregated. An accompanying statement is presented to
reconcile and explain the differences in fund balances and changes in fund balances as presented in these statements to the net
position and changes in net position presented in the government-wide financial statements. The District has presented all major
funds that met those qualifications.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are
considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the District generally considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of
the end of the current fiscal period, with the exception of reimbursement based grants, which use a period of one year. Property
taxes, licenses and permits, intergovernmental revenue, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to
be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Expenditure-driven grants are
recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other grant requirements have been met. All
other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the government.
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Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when
payment is due.

The District reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund — is the District’s primary operating fund. The general fund accounts for all financial resources except those
required to be accounted for in another fund. The primary revenue sources include property taxes and miscellaneous
revenue. The primary expenditures are for general government, public safety, highways and streets, culture and recreation,
and capital outlay.

Water Fund — accounts for the activities related to the operation of the water treatment plant, wells, and water system.
Additionally, the District reports the following fund types:

Capital Projects Fund — are used to account for the financial resources and activities relating to specific construction
projects.

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements — Include a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Net Position, and a Statement of Cash Flows for each major proprietary fund and for the non-major funds aggregated.

Proprietary funds are reported using the “economic resources” measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.
Accordingly, all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities (whether current or noncurrent), and deferred inflows of
resources are included on the Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
presents increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized in the period in which they are earned while expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

Operating revenues in the proprietary funds are those revenues that are generated from the primary operations of the fund. All
other revenues are reported as non-operating revenues. Operating expenses are those expenses that are essential to the primary
operations of the fund. All other expenses are reported as non-operating expenses.

The District reports the following major proprietary fund:

Recreation Fund — the fund established pursuant to RSA 35-B:2, I is to receive all fees for the use of recreational facilities
and concessions including building rental and management fees from the Waterville Estates Association.

1-C Cash and Cash Equivalents

The District considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
Deposits with financial institutions consist primarily of demand deposits and savings accounts.

The treasurer is required to deposit such moneys in solvent banks in state or the Public Deposit Investment Pool pursuant to New
Hampshire RSA 383:22. Funds may be deposited in banks outside of the state if such banks pledge and deliver to a third party
custodial bank or the Federal Reserve Bank, collateral security for such deposits, United States government or government
agency obligations or obligations to the State of New Hampshire in value at least equal to the amount of the deposit in each case.

1-D Statement of Cash Flows

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the District considers all highly liquid investments (including restricted assets)
with a maturity when purchased of three months or less and all local government investment pools to be cash equivalents.

1-E Receivables

Receivables recorded in the financial statements represent amounts due to the District at December 31. They are aggregated into
a single accounts receivable (net of allowance for uncollectibles) line for certain funds and aggregated columns. They consist
primarily of taxes, billing for charges, and other user fees.
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1-F Inventory

The inventories of the District are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. The inventories of the District’s
recreation fund consist of expendable material and supplies held for consumption. The cost is recorded as an expense when
consumed rather than when purchased.

1-G Prepaid Items

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items.

1-H Capital Assets

Capital assets are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities column in the government-wide financial
statements. Purchased or constructed assets are recorded at actual cost or estimated historical cost if actual cost is unavailable.
Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value at the date of donation, if received on or before June 15, 2015.
Donated capital assets received after June 15, 2015 are recorded at acquisition value. The District has established a threshold of
$5,000 and $50,000 or more for infrastructure assets and an estimate useful life in excess of one year for capitalization of
depreciable assets.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. The costs of normal maintenance
and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets of the District are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Capital Asset Classes:
Land improvements 25
Building and building improvements 10 - 40
Equipment and vehicles 5-40
Furniture and fixtures 5-15
Infrastructure 10 - 40

1-I Interfund Balances

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are
referred to as “due to/from other funds.” Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business
activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances.” Interfund receivables and payables
between funds are eliminated in the Statement of Net Position.

1-J Property Taxes

Property tax billings occur semi-annually and are based on the assessed inventory values as of April 1 of each year, which are
collected by the Town of Campton and the Town of Thornton and remitted to the District. Interest accrues at a rate of 8% on
bills outstanding after the due date and 14% on tax liens outstanding.

The District net assessed valuation as of April 1, 2021 utilized in the setting of the tax rate was as follows:

Town of Campton Assessment $ 74,794,694
Town of Thornton Assessment $ 30,225,292

The tax rates and amounts assessed for the year ended December 31, 2022 were as follows:

Per $1,000 Property
of Assessed Taxes
Valuation Assessed
Village District portion:
Town of Campton $ 16.44 $ 1,229,625
Town of Thornton 12.91 390,209
Total $ 29.35 $ 1,619,834
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1-K Accounts Payable

Accounts payable represent the gross amount of expenditures or expenses incurred as a result of normal operations, but for which
no actual payment has yet been issued to vendors/providers as of December 31, 2022.

1-L Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

Deferred outflows of resources, a separate financial statement element, represents a consumption of net position or fund balance
that applies to a future period(s) and thus will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expenses) until then.

Deferred inflows of resources, a separate financial statement element, represents an acquisition of net position or fund balance
that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. Although
certain revenues are measurable, they are not available. Available means collected within the current year or expected to be
collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current year.

1-M Compensated Absences

The District's policy allows certain employees to earn varying amounts of vacation, sick and compensatory time based on the
employee's length of employment. Upon separation from service, employees are paid in full for any accrued leave earned as set
forth by the District’s personnel policy. The liability for such leave is reported as incurred in the government-wide and
proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for those amounts is recorded in the governmental funds only if the liability has
matured as a result of employee resignations or retirements.

1-N Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term
obligations are reported as liabilities in the governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund Statement of Net
Position.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including Direct Borrowings and Direct
Placements, the District utilizes the following classifications to categorize the financial transaction:

Direct Borrowing — financial transactions for a note or a loan where the District negotiates certain terms with a single
lender and are not offered for public sale.

1-0 Defined Benefit Pension Plan

GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 and as
amended by GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date and
GASB Statement No. 82 Pension Issues — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 67, No. 68 and No.73 requires participating
employers to recognize their proportionate share of collective net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources, deferred
inflows of resources, and pension expense, and schedules have been prepared to provide employers with their calculated
proportionate share of these amounts. The collective amounts have been allocated based on employer contributions during the
respective fiscal years. Contributions from employers are recognized when legally due, based on statutory requirements.

The schedules prepared by New Hampshire Retirement System, and audited by the plan’s independent auditors, require
management to make a number of estimates and assumptions related to the reported amounts. Due to the inherent nature and
uncertainty of these estimates, actual results could differ, and the differences may be material.

1-P Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)

The District maintains two separate other postemployment benefit plans, as follows:
New Hampshire Retirement System Plan — For the purposes of measuring the total other postemployment benefit (OPEB)
liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information

about the fiduciary net position of the New Hampshire Retirement System OPEB Plan (the plan) and additions to/deductions
from the plan’s fiduciary net position has been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the New Hampshire

19



WATERVILLE ESTATES VILLAGE DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2022

Retirement System. For this purpose, the plan recognizes benefit payments when due and payable in accordance with the benefit
terms. Investments are reported at fair value, except money market investments and participating interest earning investment
contracts that have a maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less, which are reported at cost.

Single Employer Plan — The District maintains a single employer plan, but has not obtained an actuarial report calculating the
other postemployment benefit liability, deferred outflows of resources, and deferred inflows of resources in accordance with
Government Accounting Standards Board pronouncement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment
Benefits Other Than Pensions.

1-Q Net Position/Fund Balances
Government-wide Statements — Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components:

Net investment in capital assets — Consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, and reduced by the
outstanding balances of any borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those
assets.

Restricted net position — Results when constraints placed on net position use are either externally imposed by a third
party (statutory, bond covenant, or granting agency) or are imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation. The District typically uses restricted assets first, as appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the right to
selectively defer the use until a further project.

Unrestricted net position — Consists of net position not meeting the definition of the preceding categories.
Unrestricted net position is often subject to constraints imposed by management which can be removed or modified.

Fund Balance Classifications — GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions,
provides more clearly defined fund balance categories to make sure the nature and extent of the constraints placed on a
government’s fund balances are more transparent. The following classifications describe the relative strength of the spending
constraints:

Nonspendable — Amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in spendable form (such as prepaid items,
inventory or tax deeded property subject to resale); or (b) are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted — Amounts for which constraints have been placed on the use of the resources either (a) externally imposed
by creditors (such as through a debt covenant), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or
(b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed — Amounts that can be used only for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of
the legislative body (District Meeting). These amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the legislative body
removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action that was employed when the funds were initially
committed. This classification also includes contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources have been
specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements,

Assigned — Amounts that are constrained by the District’s intent to be used for a specific purpose but are neither
restricted nor committed. This intent can be expressed by the Board of Selectmen through the budgetary process.

Unassigned — Amounts that are available for any purpose. Positive amounts are reported only in the general fund. The
unassigned classification also includes negative residual fund balance of any other governmental fund that cannot be
eliminated by the offsetting of assigned fund balance amounts.

When multiple net position/fund balance classifications are available for use, it is the government’s policy to utilize the most
restricted balances first, then the next most restricted balance as needed. When components of unrestricted fund balance are
used, committed fund balance is depleted first followed by assigned fund balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied last.
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1-R Use of Estimates

The financial statements and related disclosures are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States. Management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, deferred
outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements, and revenues and expenses/expenditures during the period reported. These estimates include
assessing the collectability of receivables, recoverability of inventory, the useful lives capital assets, net pension liability, other
postemployment benefit liability, and deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to both pension and other
postemployment benefits, among others. Estimates and assumptions are reviewed periodically and the effects of revisions are
reflected in the financial statements in the period they are determined to be necessary. Actual results could differ from estimates.

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

2-A Budgetary Information

General governmental revenues and expenditures accounted for in budgetary funds are controlled by a formal integrated
budgetary accounting system in accordance with various legal requirements which govern the District’s operations. At its annual
meeting, the District adopts a budget for the current year for the general and water funds. Except as reconciled below, the budget
was adopted on a basis consistent with US generally accepted accounting principles.

Management may transfer appropriations between operating categories as deemed necessary, but expenditures may not legally
exceed budgeted appropriations in total. All annual appropriations lapse at year-end unless encumbered.

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and continuing appropriations (certain projects and specific
items not fully expended at year-end) are recognized, is employed in the governmental funds. Encumbrances are not the
equivalent of expenditures, and are therefore, reported as part of the assigned fund balance at year-end, and are carried forward to
supplement appropriations of the subsequent year.

State statutes require balanced budgets, but provide for the use of beginning unassigned fund balance to achieve that end. For
the fiscal year 2022, $370,000 of the beginning general fund unassigned fund balance was applied for this purpose.

2-B Budgetary Reconciliation to GAAP Basis

While the District reports financial position, results of operations, and changes in fund balance on the basis of generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP), the budgetary basis as provided by law is based upon accounting for certain transactions on a
basis of cash receipts, disbursements, and encumbrances. The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balance — Budget and Actual is presented for each major governmental fund which had a budget. There are no differences
between the budgetary basis of accounting for the major water fund. Differences between the budgetary basis and GAAP basis
of accounting for the general fund are as follows:

Revenues:
Per Exhibit D-1 (budgetary basis) $ 2,190,941
Adjustment:
Basis difference:
GASB Statement No. 54:
Change in deferred tax revenue relating to 60-day revenue recognition

recognized as revenue on the GAAP basis, but not on the budgetary basis (79.119)

Per Exhibit C-3 (GAAP basis) $ 2,111,822
Expenditures:

Per Exhibit D-1 (budgetary basis) $ 2,231,355
Adjustment:

Basis differences:

Encumbrances, beginning 258,987

Encumbrances, ending (259,881)

Per Exhibit C-3 (GAAP basis) $ 2,230,461
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2-C Deficit Fund Balances

The capital project fund had a deficit fund balance of $25,531 at December 31, 2022. This deficit will be financed through funds
from the general fund once the project is complete.

2-D Accounting Change

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 87, Leases, was implemented during fiscal year 2022. The objective
of this Statement is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial
reporting for leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of governments’ financial statements by requiring
recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as
inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for
lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this
Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to
recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of information
about governments’ leasing activities. As a result of implementation of this Statement, the prior year capital lease payable was
reclassified as notes payable. However, there was no restatement to the beginning net position or fund balance. The District has
assessed all potential agreements that may be applicable for reporting under GASB Statement No. 87 and have determined that
none of the agreements have met the requirements of the pronouncement.

DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

NOTE 3 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

At December 31, 2022, the reported amount of the District’s deposits was $1,110,967 and the bank balance was $1,385,362. Of
the bank balance $500,000 was covered by federal depository insurance and $885,362 was uninsured and uncollateralized.

Cash and cash equivalents reconciliation:

Cash per Statement of Net Position (Exhibit A) $ 1,110,967

NOTE 4 — TAXES RECEIVABLE

Taxes receivable represent the amount of current and prior year taxes which have not been collected as of December 31, 2022.
The amount has been reduced by an allowance for an estimated uncollectible amount of $60,000. Taxes receivable by year are
as follows:

As reported on:
Exhibit A Exhibit C-1

Property:
Levy of 2022 $ 890,806 $ 890,806
Unredeemed (under tax lien):
Levy 0f 2020 6,729 6,729
Levies of 2019 and prior 57,391 57,391
Less: allowance for estimated uncollectible taxes (60,000) * -
Net taxes receivable $ 894,926 $ 954,926

*The allowance for uncollectible property taxes is not recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting (Exhibit C-1 and C-3) due to the 60-day rule as
explained in Note 1-B. However, the allowance is recognized under the full accrual basis of accounting (Exhibits A and B).
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NOTE 5 - OTHER RECEIVABLES

Receivables at December 31, 2022, consisted of accounts (billings for water user charges). Receivables are recorded on the
District’s financial statements to the extent that the amounts are determined to be material and substantiated not only by
supporting documentation, but also by a reasonable, systematic method of determining their existence, completeness, valuation,
and collectability.

NOTE 6 — CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2022 is as follows:

Balance, Balance,
beginning Additions Deletions ending
Governmental activities:
At cost:
Not being depreciated:
Land $ 93,489 $ - $ - $ 93,489
Construction in progress 97,504 225,531 (97,504) 225,531
Total capital assets not being depreciated 190,993 225,531 (97,504) 319,020
Being depreciated:
Land improvements 375,638 - - 375,638
Buildings and building improvements 2,475,455 47,929 - 2,523,384
Equipment and vehicles 799,091 133,662 - 932,753
Furnitures and fixtures 99,476 - - 99,476
Infrastructure 1,483,243 97,504 - 1,580,747
Total capital assets being depreciated 5,232,903 279,095 - 5,511,998
Total all capital assets 5,423,896 504,626 (97,504) 5,831,018
Less accumulated depreciation:
Land improvements (115,333) (15,026) - (130,359)
Buildings and building improvements (1,701,888) (78,005) - (1,779,893)
Equipment and vehicles (448,868) (44,918) - (493,786)
Furnitures and fixtures (74,726) (7,137) - (81,863)
Infrastructure (961,780) (42,350) - (1,004,130)
Total accumulated depreciation (3,302,595) (187.436) - (3,490,031)
Net book value, capital assets being depreciated 1,930,308 91,659 - 2,021,967
Net book value, all governmental activities capital assets $ 2,121,301 $ 317,190 $ (97,504) $ 2,340,987
Business-type activities:
At cost:
Being depreciated:
Buildings and building improvements $ 264,096 $ - $ - $ 264,096
Equipment and vehicles 550,154 - - 550,154
Furniture and fixtures 44,448 - - 44,448
Infrastructure 248,326 - - 248,326
Total all capital assets 1,107,024 - - 1,107,024
Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and building improvements (87,685) (7,850) - (95,535)
Equipment and vehicles (433,870) (14,700) - (448,570)
Furniture and fixtures (44,902) (2,389) - (47,291)
Infrastructure (100,838) (11.,970) - (112,808)
Total accumulated depreciation (667,295) (36,909) - (704,204)
Net book value, all business-type activities capital assets $ 439,729 $ (36,909) § - $ 402,820
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the District based on their usage of the related assets. The amounts allocated
to each function are as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government $ 130,060
Highways and streets 15,026
Water treatment and distribution 42,350

Total depreciation expense $ 187,436

Business-type activities:
Culture and recreation $ 36,909

NOTE 7 - INTERFUND/INTERNAL BALANCES

The composition of interfund/internal balances as of December 31, 2022 is as follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Recreation $ 188,465 *
General Nonmajor 25,531
Water General 108,223

$ 322,219

The outstanding balances among funds result mainly from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services
are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and (3) payments
between funds are made.

* Represents an internal balance between the governmental funds and the proprietary funds, see Exhibit A to see elimination of balance on the Government-wide
Financial Statements.

NOTE 8 - DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred outflows of resources are as follows:
Business-type

Governmental Activities and
Activities Proprietary Fund
Amounts related to pensions, see Note 10 $ 336,762 $ 59,736
Amounts related to OPEB, see Note 11 998 177
Total deferred inflows of resources $ 337,760 $ 59,913

Deferred inflows of resources are as follows:

Business-type

Governmental Activities and General Water
Activities Proprietary Fund Fund Fund
District's portion of property taxes not collected within 60
days of the fiscal within 60 days of the year-end $ - $ - $ 232,878 $ -
Water user fees fees collected in advance 284,064 - - 284,064
Amounts related to pensions, see Note 10 33,319 5,910 - -
Total deferred inflows of resources $ 317,383 $ 5,910 $ 232,878 $ 284,064
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NOTE 9 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Changes in the District’s long-term liabilities consisted of the following for the year ended December 31, 2022:

Balance Balance Due Within Due in More
January 1, 2022 Additions Reductions December 31, 2022 One Year  Than One Year
Governmental activities:
Direct borrowings - notes payable $ 260,622 $ - 8§ (59615 $ 201,007  $ 60,201 § 140,806
Compensated absences 16,384 5,597 - 21,981 - 21,981
Pension related liability 226,907 427,908 - 654,815 - 654,815
Net other postemployment benefits 5,225 8,151 - 13,376 6,816 6,560
Total long-term liabilities 3 509.138 $ 441,656 $ (59,615) $ 891,179 $ 67,017 § 824,162
Business-type activities:
Compensated absences $ 6,778  $ 3422 § - 3 10,200 §$ - 3 10,200
Pension related liability 83,589 32,565 - 116,154 - 116,154
Net other postemployment benefits 1,925 448 - 2,373 -
Total long-term liabilities $ 92292 § 36435 § - 3 128,727  § - 3 128,727
Long-term notes are comprised of the following:
Original Issue Maturity Interest Outstanding at
Amount Date Date Rate % December 31, 2022
Governmental activities:
Direct borrowing - notes payable:

Tennis Courts $ 200,000 2021 2026 2.99 $ 160,000

John Deere Loader $ 101,096 2020 2024 2.95 41,007

Total $ 201,007

The annual requirements to amortize all general obligation notes outstanding as of December 31, 2022, including interest
payments, are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending Direct Borrowings - Notes Payable
December 31, Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 60,201 $ 5879 $ 66,080
2024 60,806 4,210 65,016
2025 40,000 2,392 42,392
2026 40,000 1,196 41,196
Totals $ 201,007 $ 13,677 $ 214,684

All debt is general obligation debt of the District, which is backed by its full faith and credit, and will be repaid from general
governmental revenues.

NOTE 10 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

Plan Description — The New Hampshire Retirement System (NHRS or the System) is a public employee retirement system that
administers one cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan (Pension Plan), a component unit of the State of
New Hampshire, as defined in Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for
Pension Plans — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 25. The Pension Plan was established in 1967 by RSA 100-A:2 and is
qualified as a tax-exempt organization under Sections 401(a) and 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Pension Plan is a
contributory, defined benefit plan providing service, disability, death and vested retirement benefits to members and their
beneficiaries. Substantially all full-time state employees, public school teachers and administrators, permanent firefighters and
permanent police officers with in the State are eligible and required to participate in the Pension Plan. The System issues a
publicly available financial report that may be obtained by writing the New Hampshire Retirement System, 54 Regional Drive,
Concord, NH 03301.
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Benefits Provided — Benefit formulas and eligibility requirements for the Pension Plan are set by state law (RSA 100-A). The
Pension Plan is divided into two membership groups. State and local employees and teachers belong to Group I. Police and
firefighters belong to Group II.

Group I benefits are provided based on creditable service and average final salary for the highest of either three or five years,
depending on when service commenced.

Group II benefits are provided based on age, years of creditable service and benefit multiplier depending on vesting status as of
1/1/12. The maximum retirement allowance for Group II members vested by 1/1/12 (45 years of age with 20 years of service or
age 60 regardless of years of creditable service) is the average final compensation multiplied by 2.5% multiplied by creditable
service. For Group II members not vested by 1/1/12 the benefit is calculated the same way but the multiplier used in the
calculation will change depending on age and years of creditable service as follows:

Years of Creditable Service as of 1/1/12 Minimum Age Minimum Service Benefit Multiplier
At least 8 but less than 10 years 46 21 2.4%
At least 6 but less than 8 years 47 22 2.3%
At least 4 but less than 6 years 48 23 2.2%
Less than 4 years 49 24 2.1%

Members of both groups may qualify for vested deferred allowances, disability allowances and death benefit allowances, subject
to meeting various eligibility requirements. Benefits are based on AFC or earnable compensation and/or service.

Contributions: The System is financed by contributions from both the employees and the District. Member contribution rates
are established and may be amended by the State legislature while employer contribution rates are set by the System trustees
based on an actuarial valuation. Group I members are required to contribute 7% of earnable compensation and group II members
(police and fire) are required to contribute 11.55% and 11.80% respectively. For fiscal year 2022, the District contributed
13.75% for other employees. The contribution requirement for the fiscal year 2022 was $95,610, which was paid in full.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions — At December 31, 2022 the District reported a liability of $770,969 for its proportionate share of the net pension
liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2022, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net
pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The District’s proportion of the net pension liability
was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected
contributions of all participating Districts and school districts, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2022, the District’s proportion
was 0.013% which was an increase of 0.006% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2021.

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the District recognized pension expense of $129,968. At December 31, 2022 the District
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Governmental activities:
Changes in proportion $ 222,566 $ 30,805
Changes in assumptions 34,831 -
Net difference between projected and actual investment

earnings on pensjon plan investments 24,817 -
Differences between expected and actual experience 12,290 2,514
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 42,258 -
Total governmental activities 336,762 33,319

(Continued)
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WATERVILLE ESTATES VILLAGE DISTRICT
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AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2022

Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources continued:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Business-type activities:
Changes in proportion 39,480 5,464
Changes in assumptions 6,178 -
Net difference between projected and actual investment
earnings on pension plan investments 4,402 -
Differences between expected and actual experience 2,180 446
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 7,496 -
Total business-type activities 59,736 5,910

Grand total

$ 396,498 $ 39,229

The $49,754 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions results from the District contributions subsequent to
the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended December 31, 2023. Other
amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in

pension expense as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending Governmental Business-type
December 31, Activities Activities Total
2023 $ 66,286 $ 11,758 $ 78,044
2024 68,031 12,068 80,099
2025 43,662 7,745 51,407
2026 83,206 14,759 97,965
Thereafter - - -
Totals $ 261,185 $ 46,330 $ 307,515

Actuarial Assumptions — The collective total pension liability was determined by a roll forward of the actuarial valuation as of
June 30, 2021, using the following actuarial assumptions which, accordingly apply to 2022 measurements:

Inflation: 2.0%
Salary increases:

Wage inflation: 2.75% (2.25% for teachers)

5.4% average, including inflation

Investment rate of return: 6.75% net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation

Mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Health Retiree Mortality Tables with credibility adjustments for each group (Police
and Fire combined) and projected fully generational mortality improvements using Scale MP-2019.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2021 valuation were based on the results of the most recent actuarial experience

study, which was for the period July 1, 2015 — June 30, 2019.

Long—term Rates of Return — The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investment was selected from a best
estimate range determined using the building block approach. Under this method, an expected future real return range is
calculated separately for each asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by
weighting the expected future real rate of return net of investment expenses by the target asset allocation percentage and by

adding expected inflation.
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Following is a table presenting target allocations and long-term rates of return for 2022:

Target
Asset Class Allocation 30 Year Geometric Return

Broad US Equity (1) 30.00% 7.60%
Global Ex-US Equity (2) 20.00% 7.90%

Total public equity 50.00%
Real Estate Equity 10.00% 6.60%
Private Equity 10.00% 8.85%

Total private market equity 20.00%
Private Debt 5.00% 7.25%
Core U.S. Fixed Income (3) 25.00% 3.60%
Inflation T 0.00% 2.25%

Total 100.00% 7.30%

Discount Rate — The discount rate used to measure the collective total pension liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash flows
used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that
employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the
member rate. For purposes of the projection, member contributions and employer service cost contributions are projected based
on the expected payroll of current members only. Employer contributions are determined based on the Pension Plan’s actuarial
funding policy as required by RSA 100-A:16. Based on those assumptions, the Pension Plan’s fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments to current plan members. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of return on Pension Plan investment was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the
collective total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate — The following
table presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 6.75% as well as
what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-
percentage point lower (5.75%) or 1-percentage point higher (7.75%) than the current rate:

Actuarial Current Single
Valuation 1% Decrease Rate Assumption 1% Increase
Date 5.75% 6.75% 7.75%
June 30, 2022 $ 1,034,446 $ 770,969 $ 551,912

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position — Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the
separately issued New Hampshire Retirement System Cost-Sharing Multiple Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan financial
report.

NOTE 11 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB)

11-A New Hampshire Retirement System (NHRS)

Plan Description — The New Hampshire Retirement System (NHRS or the System) administers a cost-sharing multiple-
employer other postemployment benefit plan medical subsidy healthcare plan (OPEB Plan). For additional system information,
please refer to the 2022 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, which can be found on the system’s website at www.nhrs.org.

Benefits Provided - Benefit amounts and eligibility requirements for the OPEB Plan are set by state law (RSA 100-A:52, RSA
100-A:52-a and RSA 100-A:52-b), and members are designated in statute by type. The four membership types are Group II,
Police Officers and Firefighters; Group I, Teachers; Group I, Political Subdivision Employees; and Group I, State Employees.
The OPEB Plan provides a medical insurance subsidy to qualified retired members. The medical insurance subsidy is a payment
made by NHRS to the former employer or its insurance administrator toward the cost of health insurance for a qualified retiree,
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his/her qualified spouse, and his/her certified dependent children with a disability who are living in the household and being
cared for by the retiree. If the health insurance premium amount is less than the medical subsidy amount, then only the health
insurance premium amount will be paid. If the health insurance premium amount exceeds the medical subsidy amount, then the
retiree or other qualified person is responsible for paying any portion that the employer does not pay.

Group I benefits are based on creditable service, age and retirement date. Group II benefits are based on hire date, age and
creditable service. The OPEB plan is closed to new entrants.

Maximum medical subsidy rates paid during fiscal year 2022 were as follows:

For qualified retirees not eligible for Medicare, the amounts were $375.56 for a single-person plan and $751.12 for a
two-person plan.

For those qualified retirees eligible for Medicare, the amounts were $236.84 for a single-person plan and $473.68 for a
two-person plan.

Contributions — The OPEB Plan is funded by allocating to the 401(h) subtrust the lessor of: 25% of all employer contributions
made in accordance with RSA 100-A:16 or the percentage of employer contributions determined by the actuary to be the
minimum rate necessary to maintain the benefits provided under RSA 100-A:53-b, RSA 100-A:53-c, and RSA 100-A:53-d. For
fiscal year 2022, the minimum rates determined by the actuary to maintain benefits were the lesser of the two options and were
used to determine the employer contributions due to the 401(h) subtrust. The State Legislature has the authority to establish,
amend and discontinue the contribution requirements of the OPEB Plan. Administrative costs are allocated to the OPEB Plan
based on fund balances. For fiscal year 2022, the District contributed 0.31% for other employees. The contribution requirement
for the fiscal year 2022 was $2,165, which was paid in full.

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB — At
December 31, 2022, the District reported a liability of $15,749 for its proportionate share of the net OPEB liability. The net
OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2022, and the total OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021. The District’s proportion of the net OPEB liability was based on a
projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the OPEB plan relative to the projected contributions of all
participating Districts and school districts, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2022, the District’s proportion was 0.004% which
was an increase of 0.002% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2021.

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the District recognized OPEB expense of $10,217. At December 31, 2022, the District
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources
Governmental activities:
Net difference between projected and actual investment
earnings on pension plan investments $ 37
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 961
Total governmental activities 998
Business-type activities:
Net difference between projected and actual investment
earnings on pension plan investments 6
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 171
Total business-type activities 177
Grand total $ 1,175
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The $1,132 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB results from the District contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability in the year ended December 31, 2023. Other
amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in
OPEB expense as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending  Governmental Business-type
December 31, Activities Activities Total

2023 $ 6 $ 1 $ 7
2024 2 - 2

2025 (15) )] 17
2026 44 7 51
Thereafter - - -
Totals $ 37 $ 6 $ 43

Actuarial Assumptions — The total OPEB liability in this report is based on an actuarial valuation performed as of June 30, 2021
and a measurement date of June 30, 2022. The total OPEB liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions
applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Price inflation: 2.0% per year
Wage inflation: 2.75% (2.25% for teachers)
Salary increases: 5.4% average, including inflation

Investment rate of return: 6.75% net of OPEB plan investment expense, including inflation
Health care trend rate: Not applicable, given that the benefits are fixed stipends

Mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Health Retiree Mortality Tables with credibility adjustments for each group (Police
and Fire combined) and projected fully generational mortality improvements using Scale MP-2019.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2021 valuation were based on the results of the most recent actuarial experience
study, which was for the period July 1, 2015 — June 30, 2019.

Long—term Rates of Return — The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investment was selected from a best estimate
range determined using the building block approach. Under this method, an expected future real return range is calculated
separately for each asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the
expected future real rate of return net of investment expenses by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation. Following is a table presenting target allocations and long-term rates of return for 2022:

Target
Asset Class Allocation 30 Year Geometric Return

Broad US Equity (1) 30.00% 7.60%
Global Ex-US Equity (2) 20.00% 7.90%

Total public equity " 50.00%
Real Estate Equity 10.00% 6.60%
Private Equity 10.00% 8.85%

Total private market equity 20.00%
Private Debt 5.00% 7.25%
Core U.S. Fixed Income (3) 25.00%
Inflation 0.00% 2.25%
Total 100.00% 7.30%

Discount Rate — The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2022 was 6.75%. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employer contributions will be made under the current statute RSA
100-A:16 and that plan member contributions will be made under RSA 100-A:16. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB Plan’s
fiduciary net position was projected to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-
term expected rate of return on OPEB Plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the
collective total OPEB liability.
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Sensitivity of the District’s Proportionate Share of the OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate — The following table
presents the District’s proportionate share of the OPEB liability calculated using the discount rate of 6.75% as well as what the
District’s proportionate share of the OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point
lower (5.75%) or 1-percentage point higher (7.75%) than the current rate:

Actuarial Current Single
Valuation 1% Decrease Rate Assumption 1% Increase
Date 5.75% 6.75% 7.75%
June 30, 2022 $ 17,099 $ 15,749 $ 14574

OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position — Detailed information about the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the
separately issued New Hampshire Retirement System Cost-Sharing Multiple Employer Defined Benefit OPEB Plan financial
report.

11-B Waterville Estates Village District Retiree Health Benefit Program

The District provides postemployment benefit options for health care to eligible retirees, terminated employees, and their
dependents in accordance with the provisions of various employment contracts. The benefit levels, employee contributions, and
employer contributions are governed by the District’s contractual agreements. Expenses for the cost of providing health
insurance for currently enrolled retirees are recognized in the general fund of the funds financial statements as payments are
made.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting by
Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions in 2015. GASB Statement No. 75 requires state and local
government employers to recognize the net OPEB liability and the OPEB expense on their financial statements, along with the
related deferred outflows and inflows of resources. The District has not fully implemented GASB Statement No. 75 at
December 31, 2022, or contracted with an actuarial firm to assist in evaluating the impact of this standard on the District. The
amounts that should be recorded as the net OPEB liability and the OPEB expense is unknown.

NOTE 12 - ENCUMBRANCES

The outstanding encumbrances are amounts needed to pay any commitments related to purchase orders and contracts that remain
unperformed at December 31, 2022 are as follows:

General fund:

General government $ 122,294
Culture and recreation 28,223
Capital outlay 109,364

Total encumbrances $ 259,881

NOTE 13 - GOVERNMENTAL AND BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES NET POSITION

Governmental and business-type activities net position reported on the Statements of Net Position at December 31, 2022 include
the following:

Business-type

Governmental Activities and
Activities Proprietary Fund Total
Net investment in capital assets:
Net book value, all capital assets $ 2,340,987 $ 402,820 $ 2,743,807
Less:
Notes payable (201,007) - (201,007)
Total net investment in capital assets 2,139,980 402,820 2,542,800
Unrestricted 1,296,269 (178,779) 1,117,490
Total net position $ 3,436,249 $ 224,041 $ 3,660,290
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NOTE 14 - GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES

Governmental fund balances reported on the fund financial statements at December 31, 2022 include the following:

Total
General Water Nonmajor Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds
Nonspendable:
Prepaid items $ 16,752 $ 8015 § - § 24,767
Committed:
Water services $ - $ 150,595 $ - $ 150,595
Nonlapsing appropriations 259,881 - - 259.881
Total committed fund balance 259,881 150,595 - 410,476
Unassigned (deficit)
Unassigned 1,104,201 - - 1,104,201
Deficit E - (25,531) (25,531)
Total unassigned fund balance (deficit) 1,104,201 - (25,531) 1,078,670
Total governmental fund balances (deficit) $ 1,380,834 $ 158,610 $ (25,531) $ 1,513,913

NOTE 15 — RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction of assets; errors or omissions;
injuries to employees; or natural disasters. During fiscal year 2022, the District was a member of the New Hampshire Public
Risk Management Exchange (Primex®) Workers’ Compensation and Property/Liability Programs.

The New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange (Primex®) Workers’ Compensation and Property/Liability Programs are
pooled risk management programs under RSAs 5-B and 281-A. Coverage was provided from January 1, 2022 to December 31,
2022 by Primex®, which retained $2,000,000 of each workers’ compensation loss, $500,000 of each liability loss, and for each
property loss it is based upon the District’s property schedule on file with Primex®. The Board has decided to self-insure the
aggregate exposure and has allocated funds based on actuarial analysis for that purpose. The workers’ compensation section of
the self-insurance membership agreement permits Primex® to make additional assessments to members should there be a
deficiency in contributions for any member year, not to exceed the member’s annual contribution. GASB Statement No. 10
requires members of a pool with a sharing risk to disclose if such an assessment is probable, and a reasonable estimate of the
amount, if any. In fiscal year 2022 the District paid $32,775 and $23,587 respectively, to Primex for property, liability and
worker’s compensation. At this time, Primex’ foresees no likelihood of any additional assessment for this or any prior year.

The District continues to carry commercial insurance for all other risks of loss. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not
exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

NOTE 16 - COVID-19

As a result of the spread of COVID-19, Coronavirus, economic uncertainties continue. The duration of these uncertainties and
the ultimate financial effects cannot be reasonably estimated at this time. The full extent of the financial impact cannot be
determined as of the date of the financial statements.

NOTE 17 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the balance sheet date, but before the financial statements are
issued. Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provided additional evidence about conditions that existed
at the balance sheet date, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the financial statements. Nonrecognized
subsequent events are events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the balance sheet date but arose after the
date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through December 21, 2023, the date the December 31, 2022 financial
statements were available to be issued, and the following no events occurred that require recognition or disclosure.
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EXHIBIT F
WATERVILLE ESTATES VILLAGE DISTRICT
Schedule of the District's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability
New Hampshire Retirement System Cost Sharing Multiple Employer Defined Benefit Plan
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2022
Unaudited

Fiscal year-end

Measurement date

District's proportion of
the net pension liability

District's proportionate share
of the net pension liability

District's covered payroll
(as of the measurement date)

District's proportionate share
of the net pension liability
as a percentage of
its covered payroll

Plan fiduciary net position
as a percentage of the
total pension liability

December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,

December 31,

December 31,

December 31,

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
0.010% 0.009% 0.007% 0.008% 0.008% 0.009% 0.009% 0.007% 0.007% 0.013%
$ 433438 § 331,938 § 290,221 § 416,508 $ 414483 $ 437,752 § 409,108 §$ 468,104  § 310496 $ 770,969
$ 239866 § 274,799 § 226,318 § 206971 §$ 284,755  § 340497 $ 317272 § 298819 $ 350,724 §$ 712,761
180.70% 120.79% 128.24% 201.24% 145.56% 128.56% 128.95% 156.65% 88.53% 108.17%
59.81% 66.32% 65.47% 58,30% 62.66% 64.73% 65.59% 58.72% 72.22% 65.12%
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EXHIBIT G
WATERVILLE ESTATES VILLAGE DISTRICT
Schedule of District Contributions - Pensions
New Hampshire Retirement System Cost Sharing Multiple Employer Defined Benefit Plan

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2022

Unaudited
Fiscal year-end December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Measurement date June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Contractually required contribution $ 25,042 3 28,689 $ 24,578 $ 28,047 $ 30,875 $ 38,424 $ 37,001 $ 31,500 $ 51,118 3 95,610
Contributions in relation to the
contractually required contributions 25,042 28,689 24,578 28,047 30,875 38,424 37,001 31,500 51,118 95,610
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - $ - 3 - % - 3 - $ - 3 - $ - 3 -
District's covered payroll
(as of fiscal year-end) 3 239,866 $ 274,799 $ 226,318 $ 206,971 $ 284,755 $ 340,497 $ 317272 $ 289,520 $ 415,085 $ 712,761
Contributions as a percentage
of covered payroll 10.44% 10.44% 10.86% 13.55% 10.84% 11.28% 11.66% 10.88% 12.32% 13.41%



WATERVILLE ESTATES VILLAGE DISTRICT

NOTE TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION -
PENSION LIABILITY

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2022

Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability and
Schedule of District Contributions - Pensions

Changes in Benefit Terms — There were no changes in benefit terms for the current period.
Changes in Assumptions — Salary increases changed to 5.4% from 5.6% in the current period.

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates — A full list of the methods and assumptions used to
determine the contribution rates can be found in the most recent actuarial valuation report. This report can be located at
www.nhrs.org.

As required by GASB Statement No. 68, and as amended by GASB Statement No. 71, Exhibits F and G represent the actuarial
determined costs associated with the District’s pension plan at December 31, 2022. These schedules are presented to illustrate the
requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those
years for which information is available.
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EXHIBITH
WATERVILLE ESTATES VILLAGE DISTRICT
Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Other Postemployment Benefit Plan Liability
New Hampshire Retirement System Cost Sharing Multiple Employer Defined Benefit Plan
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2022

Unaudited
Fiscal year-end December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Measurement date June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
District's proportion of
the net OPEB liability 0.001% 0.001% 0.002% 0.002% 0.002% 0.002% 0.004%
District's proportionate
share of the net OPEB
liability (asset) $ 6,682 $ 6804 $ 10,775 % 9,626 $ 8,176 § 7,150 $ 15,749
District's covered payroll
(as of measurement date) $ 206971 $ 284,755 $ 340,497 $ 317,272 $ 298819 $§ 350274 $ 712,761
District's proportionashe
share of the net OPEB
liability (asset) as a percentage
of its covered payroll 3.23% 2.39% 3.16% 3.03% 2.74% 2.04% 2.21%
Plan fiduciary net position
as a percentage of the
total OPEB liability 5.21% 7.91% 7.53% 7.75% 7.74% 11.06% 10.64%

The Note to the Required Supplementary Information — Other Postemployment Benefit Liability is an integral part of this

schedule.
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EXHIBIT1

WATERVILLE ESTATES VILLAGE DISTRICT
Schedule of District Contributions - Other Postemployment Benefits
New Hampshire Retirement System Cost Sharing Multiple Employer Defined Benefit Plan

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2022

Unaudited
Fiscal year-end December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2016 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Measurement date June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Contractually required
contribution $ 802 § 882 § 1,041 $ 1,002 $ 840 §$ 1,226 $ 2,165
Contributions in relation
to the contractually
required contribution 802 882 1,041 1,002 840 1,226 2,165
Contribution deficiency
(excess) $ - § -5 - $ - $ - $ - § -
District's covered payroll
(as of fiscal year-end) $ 206971 $ 284,755 $ 340,497 $ 317,272 $ 289,520 $ 415,085 § 712,761
Contributions as a percentage
of covered payroll 0.39% 0.31% 0.31% 0.32% 0.29% 0.30% 0.30%

The Note to the Required Supplementary Information — Other Postemployment Benefit Liability is an integral part of this

schedule.
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WATERVILLE ESTATES VILLAGE DISTRICT

NOTE TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION —
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT LIABILITY

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2022

Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of Net Other Postemployment Benefits Liability and
Schedule of District Contributions — Other Postemployment Benefits

Changes in Benefit Terms — There were no changes in benefit terms for the current period.
Changes in Assumptions — Salary increases changed to 5.4% from 5.6% in the current period.

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates — A full list of the methods and assumptions used to
determine the contribution rates can be found in the most recent actuarial valuation report. This report can be located at
www.nhrs.org.

As required by GASB Statement No. 75, Exhibits H and I represent the actuarial determined costs associated with the District’s
other postemployment benefits at December 31, 2022. These schedules are presented to illustrate the requirement to show
information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for which
information is available.
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SCHEDULE 1
WATERVILLE ESTATES VILLAGE DISTRICT
Major General Fund

Schedule of Estimated and Actual Revenues (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2022

Variance
Positive
Estimated Actual (Negative)
Taxes:
Property $ 1,619,383 $ 1,619,834 $ 451
Interest and penalties on taxes 5,526 6,807 1,281
Total from taxes 1,624,909 1,626,641 1,732
Charges for services:
Income from departments 226,736 - (226,736)
Miscellaneous:
Sale of municipal property 1,486 - (1,486)
Interest on investments 774 1,308 534
Other 210,142 562,992 352,850
Total from miscellaneous 212,402 564,300 351,898
Total revenues 2,064,047 $ 2,190,941 $ 126,894
Amounts voted from fund balance 370,000
Total revenues and use of fund balance $ 2,434,047

See Independent Auditor’s Report.

39



SCHEDULE 2

WATERVILLE ESTATES VILLAGE DISTRICT

Major General Fund

Schedule of Appropriations and Expenditures (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2022

Current:
General government:
Executive
Election and registration
Financial administration
Legal
Personnel administration
Planning and zoning
General government buildings
Insurance, not otherwise allocated
Adbvertising and regional associations
Other
Total general government

Public safety:
Fire
Highways and streets:
Administration
Highways and streets
Other
Total highways and streets

Culture and recreation:

Debt service:
Principal of long-term debt
Interest on long-term debt
Total debt service

Capital outlay

Total appropriation and expenditures

Encumbered Encumbered Variance
from Prior to Subsequent Positive
Year Appropriations  Expenditures Year (Negative)
$ - 3 363,023 $§ 220,592 § - $ 142,431
- 15,263 - - 15,263
8,228 19,475 64,581 - (36,878)
- 122,800 119,851 - 2,949
- 14,093 21,033 - (6,940)
= 1 - - 1
135,000 175,000 54,539 122,294 133,167
- 54,727 105,543 - (50,816)
- 1,000 5,657 - (4,657)
- 72,355 109,278 - (36,923)
143,228 837,737 701,074 122,294 157,597
- 13,179 17,089 - (3,910)
- 12,738 10,865 - 1,873
23,760 458,868 334,935 - 147,693
20,000 63,252 22,012 - 61,240
43,760 534,858 367,812 - 210,806
71,999 882,293 833,917 28,223 92,152
- 40,000 40,000 - =
- 5,980 3,342 - 2,638
- 45,980 43,342 - 2,638
- 120,000 267,227 109,364 (256,591)
$ 258987 $ 2434047 $ 2230461 $ 259,881 $§ 202,692

See Independent Auditor’s Report.
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SCHEDULE 3
WATERVILLE ESTATES VILLAGE DISTRICT
Major General Fund

Schedule of Changes in Unassigned Fund Balance
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2022

Unassigned fund balance, beginning (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

Changes:
Amounts voted from fund balance
2022 Budget summary:
Revenue surplus (Schedule 1) $ 126,894
Unexpended balance of appropriations (Schedule 2) 202,692

2022 Budget surplus

Increase in nonspendable fund balance

Unassigned fund balance, ending (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Reconciliation on Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis to GAAP Basis

To record deferred property taxes not collected within 60 days of the
fiscal year-end, not recognized on a budgetary basis

Elimination of the allowance for uncollectible taxes
Unassigned fund balance, ending, GAAP basis (Exhibit C-1)

See Independent Auditor’s Report.
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$ 1,334,245

(370,000)

329,586

(16,752)

1,277,079

(232,878)
60,000

$ 1,104,201
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S COMMUNICATION OF MATERIAL WEAKNESSES
AND SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES

To the Members of the Board of Commissioners
Watetville Estates Village District
Campton, New Hampshire

In planning and performing our audit of the basic financial statements of the Waterville Estates Village District as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2022, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we
considered the Waterville Estates Village District’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Waterville Estates Village District’s internal control over financial
reporting.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was not designed to
identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore, significant
deficiencies or material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. However, as discussed below, we identified certain
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses and another deficiency that we consider to be a
significant deficiency.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the
normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A
material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A reasonable possibility exists when the likelihood of an event occurring is either reasonably
possible or probable as defined as follows:

° Reasonably possible. The chance of the future event or events occurring is more than remote but less than likely.
° Probable. The future event or events are likely to occur.

We consider the following deficiencies in the Waterville Estates Village District’s internal control to be material weaknesses:

Budgeting

We noted significant variances between amounts budgeted and approved by voters with the actual results of activity recorded. A
large percentage of the variances relate to the budgeting of recreation expenses in both the governmental general fund and the
proprietary recreation fund, and capital items purchased by one fund for the benefit of the other fund. The amount of recreation
expenditures actually recorded in the general fund appeared to be based on the revenue results and financial position of the
recreation fund, rather than an identifiable or systematic process of allocating expenditures between funds. We recommend that
an expenditure budget be created based on a reasonable, systematic process of allocating expenditures. An alternative to this
approach, would be to budget all recreation expenditures in the proprietary recreation fund, and budget one amount, representing
the general fund’s subsidy of the difference between the total recreation expenditure budget, anticipated recreation revenue, and
revenue committed from Waterville Estates Association.
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Waterville Estates Village District
Independent Auditor’s Communication of Material Weaknesses and Significant Deficiencies

Procedural changes need to be made relative to the purchase and recording of capital items, as well as transfers of funds by
Waterville Estates Association for the benefit of Waterville Estates Village District. According to the Recreation Management
Agreement dated October 29, 2016, between Waterville Estates Village District and Waterville Estates Association:

“On or before November | of each year, the Association shall advise the District of the irrevocable
commitment of the amount of money the Association shall make available to the District Sfor
recreational activities for the ensuing year. At this time, the Association shall also provide a proposed
program of recreational activities, together with the estimated cost of each such activity. Additionally,
the Association shall provide a separate proposal for capital improvements, all with a corresponding
commitment of Association funds to be made available for such.”

The District should use the accepted, irrevocable commitment from the Association in developing the annual budgets for the
general and recreation funds. Commitments pledged for the benefit of the general fund should be budgeted directly in the
general fund in an identifiable account, funds should be transferred directly to the general fund bank account, and purchases
should be made from this account. The transfers should be recorded in a clearly identifiable manner in the general fund. If the
transfer is related to the purchase of a capital item, the nature of the expenditure should also be clearly identified, so the District
can properly record the item for financial reporting purposes. This process should also be followed for commitments pledged to
the recreation fund.

Journal Entries

During the audit, it was noted that most journal entries were not formally reviewed and approved and often lacked adequate
supporting documentation. We recommend that management categorize journal entries into recurring journal entries and
nonrecurring journal entries, where authorization for recurring entries is established at the beginning of the year. Nonrecurring
journal entries would require formal review and approval by management, that should be demonstrated by a signature or
initialing or another method that would allow for confirmation of the approval. Journal entries should always be supported by
appropriate documentation where possible. Good documentation serves as an accounting record and facilitates future follow-up
as well as additional insight for other users.

Review of Accounting Software Permissions and Proper Segregation of Duties

Accounting software permission should be reviewed, and employees should be restricted to permissions relevant and appropriate
to their position. Software permissions are critical in ensuring that employees are not able to override internal control policies
and procedures designed by management. We recommend that the District apply the principle of the least privilege for all users.
Employees/users should be permitted access on an as-required basis such that they can perform their required tasks. By reducing
access to only designated individuals, as needed, it helps ensure that segregation of duties is maintained and reduces the risk of
management override of controls.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the
following deficiencies in the entity’s internal control to be significant deficiencies:

Accounting Policies and Procedures

During our audit, we noted that the District has not developed several accounting policies and procedures. Reconciliation
policies and procedures have not been established. The District has started the process of documenting various procedures in the
finance department. We recommend that they continue to document these procedures, and ultimately develop Board approved
policies, that are maintained in a formal procedures manual. This procedures manual should be distributed to all employees, to
ensure that proper procedures and related internal controls are in place and consistently followed.

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Commissioners, and others
within the Waterville Estates Village District, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

T—}n ndad b
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2024 ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES AGREEMENT
WATERVILLE ESTATES ASSOCIATION & WATERVILLE ESTATES VILLAGE DISTRICT

This Agreement is made this 30th day of December in the year of 2023 (“Agreement”) by and
between Waterville Estates Village District, a municipal corporation, with a principal mailing
address of 562 Winterbrook Road, Campton, NH 03223 (hereinafter the "District" or "WEVD"),
and Waterville Estates Association, a New Hampshire corporation, with a principal mailing
address of 562 Winterbrook Road Campton NH, 03223 (hereinafter the "Association" or "WEA")
(collectively from time to time herein the District or WEVD and Association or WEA the

“Parties™).

AUTHORITY

This Agreement is entered into under the authority of RSA 31:3 and 52:8.

PURPOSE
The purpose of this Agreement is to formalize the financial arrangements relative to the
administrative services provided by the District and financing of those aforementioned services

with the use of the Association’s funds.

DEFINITIONS
The meaning of the following words or phrases used in this document are as described below,

unless the context indicates otherwise:

Administrative Services: The services performed by WEVD staff on behalf of the WEA
Board of Directors pursuant to this Agreement and, as outlined
below, including supplies, equipment costs, employee wages and
benefits, postage, etc.



2024 ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES AGREEMENT
WATERVILLE ESTATES ASSOCIATION & WATERVILLE ESTATES VILLAGE DISTRICT

RECITALS
A. The District was formed pursuant to RSA Chapter 52 as a municipal corporation
funded through the property taxes for the purpose of funding community services such as
the supply of water for domestic purposes 52:1, I (d)), the maintenance of roads (RSA 52:1,
I (m)), the impoundment of water (RSA 52:1, I (d)), the maintenance of facilities and
activities for "recreational promotion" (RSA 52:1, I (h)), and the maintenance and care of

parks and commons (RSA 52:1,1 (g) and (h)).

The District's roles and responsibilities pursuant to this Agreement include the following
Administrative Services which are illustrative:

1) Processing building applications (start to finish) including receipt, tracking, and processing
2) Mailing WEA deposits daily

3) Receiving/forwarding payments to WEA management company, Evergreen Management
Group (“Evergreen”) and/or WEA

4) Initiation of new owners

5) Preparation and administrative processes involved with WEA BOD meetings and member
annual meeting

6) Management and processing of all WEA member voting activities

7) Other Administrative services historically provided to the Association

B. The Association was formed as the successor to Waterville Estates
developer, Locke Waterville Corporation, and represents all owners of property in
"Waterville Estates" a village district located in the Towns of Thornton and Campton, New

Hampshire.



2024 ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES AGREEMENT
WATERVILLE ESTATES ASSOCIATION & WATERVILLE ESTATES VILLAGE DISTRICT

The Association's roles and responsibilities pursuant to this Agreement include the
following:

¢ Communicate and provide information in a timely manner.

In consideration of the mutual covenants stated within this Agreement, the Parties willingly
enter into this Administrative Services Agreement concerning administrative support, and

agree as follows:

DURATION and TERMINATION

a. This Agreement supersedes all prior agreements between the parties regarding
administrative support for WEA by WEVD employees including, without limitation, those
contained in the prior Recreation Management Agreement(s) (“RMA”)

b. This Agreement shall be effective from January 2, 2024, to December 31, 2024. Changes,
if any, are to be in written form on the original agreement document or by addendum and
to include the names and signatures of the approving representatives. Copies of the updated
original agreement or addendum are to be provided to the WEVD and the WEA. In the
event the Parties recognize the Association needs an additional, new or different
administrative service to be provided by the District, both parties agree to confer and work
cooperatively to make any needed changes to this Agreement.

c. Non-Appropriations Clause: In the event no funds are appropriated for the provisions of
this Agreement at the WEVD Annual Meeting preeess, this Agreement shall automatically

terminate.



2024 ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES AGREEMENT
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INSURANCE

The Association agrees to maintain insurance as required in the RMA currently in effect.

SERVICING OF ADMINISTRATIVE ACTIVITIES
The District shall supply necessary qualified personnel and equipment in order to provide
administrative services agreed upon by the Parties hereto on an annual basis, within the limits of

the funds made available by the Association.

a. On or before November 15 each year, WEA shall provide a request for any

changes in the scope of services.

b. Nothing contained herein shall prevent the WEA from making additional
funds available to WEVD for additional Administrative Services mutually agreed
upon. All unanticipated funds received by WEVD and not reflected in the Annual
Meeting budget process are subject to all municipal laws regarding unanticipated

funds, including but not limited to, RSA 31:95-b.

PAYMENTS

The District will invoice the Association at the quarterly Rec Fund, as defined in the RMA,
reconciliation meetings. The cost for administrative services shall be $26.00 an hour. WEVD will
bill for District employee time/services at $26.00 per hour with an estimated total to be $3,000-

$5,000 for 2024.

REMEDIES
a. If WEVD or WEA breaches any material term of this Agreement, the other non-

breaching entity shall give written notice specifying the nature of the breach. If the entity

4



2024 ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES AGREEMENT
WATERVILLE ESTATES ASSOCIATION & WATERVILLE ESTATES VILLAGE DISTRICT

fails to remedy the breach within 30 days of such notice, or if such breach shall have been
of such a nature that the same could not have been cured within 30 days, and if the
breaching entity shall not have, in good faith, commenced the curing or remedying of
such breach, within such 30-day period, the other entity may, at its option, terminate this
Agreement. Upon termination, both entities shall settle all outstanding accounts.

b. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, WEVD will not be obligated,

by this Agreement, to perform services beyond those agreed upon to be funded by WEA.

SUCCESSORS, ASSIGNS, AND NON-ASSIGNABILITY
This Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the successors and assigns of the
parties hereto, however, this Agreement may not be assigned by either party without prior

written consent.

VALIDITY

This Agreement is understood to comply fully with the laws of the State of New Hampshire
relative to Village Districts, and, in particular, relative to the authority and duties of the
commissioners, and therefore, to the extent any provision of this Agreement in any way may
conflict with or breach such laws, such provision shall be null and void without affecting the

remainder of this Agreement.

TERMS AND AMENDMENTS
If either Party wishes to amend or change this Agreement, notice will be given to the other of such

desire by November 15 of each year. If Parties are unable to reach agreement upon the cost of
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services and scope of services for the upcoming year, this Agreement will terminate December 31.
This Agreement will be for one year and can be renewed upon vote of both the WEA Board and

the WEVD Commissioners to do so.

SEVERABILITY
Any part, provision, representation or warranty of this Agreement which is prohibited or
which is held to be void or unenforceable shall be ineffective to the extent of such
prohibition or unenforceability without invalidating the remaining provisions hereof. If the
invalidity of any part, provision, representation or warranty of this Agreement shall deprive
any party of the economic benefit intended to be conferred by this Agreement, the Parties
shall negotiate, in good faith, to develop a structure, the economic effect of which, is as

close as possible to the economic effect of this Agreement without regard to such invalidity.

NOTICES

All notices required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be
deemed to have been given and received (a) when personally delivered, or delivered by same-day
courier; or (b) on the third business day after mailing by registered or certified mail, postage
prepaid, return receipt requested; or (c) upon delivery when sent by prepaid overnight express
delivery service (e.g., FedEx, UPS); or (d) when sent by email or facsimile and upon the receipt
by the sending party of written confirmation by the receiving party; provided, however, that an
automated facsimile or email confirmation of delivery or read receipt shall not constitute such

confirmation; and, in any case addressed to either Party, at such address, including regularly
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monitored email address, which address may be updated by either Party in writing from time to

time, and as follows:

a. Notice to the Association shall be in writing to the President of the WEA Board of

Directors.

b. Notice to WEVD shall be to the Commissioners of WEVD and the WEVD

General Manager.

WHEREFORE, the parties have signed this SEVEN (7) page Agreement on the date
written.

By the Waterville Estates Village District Commissioners

2;@23

Date
[z/2l/20t b
Date

/L{ zzf 20273
Date

By the President of the Board of Directors and a second Board member

[/ 29 /2 &

Date

Da;,e .
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ATTACHMENTS
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TITLE III
TOWNS, CITIES, VILLAGE DISTRICTS,
AND UNINCORPORATED PLACES

CHAPTER 31
POWERS AND DUTIES OF TOWNS

Powers
Section 31:3

31:3 In General. — Towns may purchase and hold real and personal estate for the public uses of
the inhabitants, and may sell and convey the same; may recognize unions of employees and make and
enter into collective bargaining contracts with such unions; and may make any contracts which may be
necessary and convenient for the transaction of the public business of the town.

Source. RS 31:3. CS 32:3. GS 34:3. GL 37:3. PS 40:3. PL 42:3. RL 51:3. RSA 31:3. 1955,
255:1, eff. July 14, 1955.
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TITLE III
TOWNS, CITIES, VILLAGE DISTRICTS,
AND UNINCORPORATED PLACES

CHAPTER 52
VILLAGE DISTRICTS

Section 52:8
52:8 Duties. — The moderator, clerk, treasurer and commissioners shall severally qualify and
possess the same powers and perform the same duties in respect to the district's meetings and business

affairs that the moderator, clerk, treasurer and selectmen of towns respectively possess and perform in
respect to like matters in towns.

Source. 1849, 852:5, 6. CS 116:5, 6. GS 97:3. GL 107:3. PS 53:7. 1905, 99:1. PL 57:8. RL 70:8.
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TITLE III
TOWNS, CITIES, VILLAGE DISTRICTS,
AND UNINCORPORATED PLACES

CHAPTER 52
VILLAGE DISTRICTS

Section 52:1

52:1 Establishment. -
I. Upon the petition of 10 or more voters, persons domiciled in any village situated in one or more
towns, the selectmen of the town or towns shall fix, by suitable boundaries, a district including such
parts of the town or towns as may seem convenient, for any of the following purposes:
(a) The extinguishment of fires;
(b) The lighting or sprinkling of streets;
(c) The planting and care for shade and ornamental trees;
(d) The supply of water for domestic and fire purposes, which may include the protection of sources of
supply;
(e) The construction and maintenance of sidewalks and main drains or common sewers;
(f) The construction, operation, and maintenance of sewage and waste treatment plants;
(g) The construction, maintenance, and care of parks or commons;
(h) The maintenance of activities for recreational promotion;
(i) The construction or purchase and maintenance of a municipal lighting plant;
(j) The control of pollen, insects, and pests;
(k) The impoundment of water;
(I) The appointing and employment of watchmen and police officers;
(m) The layout, acceptance, construction, and maintenance of roads; and
(n) The maintenance of ambulance services.
Il. The voters who are domiciled in any village shall cause a record of the petition, pursuant to paragraph
I, and their proceedings thereon to be recorded in the records of the towns in which the district is
situate.

Source. 1849, 852:1. CS 116:1. GS 97:1. GL 107:1. 1889, 82:1. PS 53:1. 1909, 27:1. 1911, 5:1.
PL 57:1. 1939, 108:1. RL 70:1. RSA 52:1. 1957, 179:1. 1961, 120:3. 1975, 13:1; 455:1. 1977,
154:1. 1981, 375:1. 2003, 289:14, eff. Sept. 1, 2003.
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TITLE III
TOWNS, CITIES, VILLAGE DISTRICTS,
AND UNINCORPORATED PLACES

CHAPTER 31
POWERS AND DUTIES OF TOWNS

Miscellaneous
Section 31:95-b

31:95-b Appropriation for Funds Made Available During Year. —
I. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, any town or village district at an annual meeting may
adopt an article authorizing, indefinitely until specific rescission of such authority, the board of
selectmen or board of commissioners to apply for, accept and expend, without further action by the
town or village district meeting, unanticipated money from the state, federal or other governmental unit
or a private source which becomes available during the fiscal year. The following shall apply:
(a) Such warrant article to be voted on shall read: "Shall the town (or village district) accept the
provisions of RSA 31:95-b providing that any town (or village district) at an annual meeting may adopt
an article authorizing indefinitely, until specific rescission of such authority, the selectmen (or
commissioners) to apply for, accept and expend, without further action by the town (or village district)
meeting, unanticipated money from a state, federal, or other governmental unit or a private source
which becomes available during the fiscal year?"
(b) If a majority of voters voting on the question vote in the affirmative, the proposed warrant article
shall be in effect in accordance with the terms of the article until such time as the town or village district
meeting votes to rescind its vote.
1. Such money shall be used only for legal purposes for which a town or village district may appropriate
money.
I1I. (a) For unanticipated moneys in the amount of $10,000 or more, the selectmen or board of
commissioners shall hold a prior public hearing on the action to be taken. Notice of the time, place, and
subject of such hearing shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the relevant
municipality at least 7 days before the hearing is held.
(b) The board of selectmen may establish the amount of unanticipated funds required for notice under
this subparagraph, provided such amount is less than $10,000. For unanticipated moneys in an amount
less than such amount, the board of selectmen shall post notice of the funds in the agenda and shall
include notice in the minutes of the board of selectmen meeting in which such moneys are discussed.
The acceptance of unanticipated moneys under this subparagraph shall be made in public session of any
regular board of selectmen meeting.
IV. Action to be taken under this section shall:

12
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(a) Not require the expenditure of other town or village district funds except those funds lawfully
appropriated for the same purpose; and

(b) Be exempt from all provisions of RSA 32 relative to limitation and expenditure of town or village
district moneys.

Source. 1979, 42:1. 1991, 25:1. 1993, 176:3, eff. Aug. 8, 1993. 1997, 105:1, eff. Aug. 8, 1997.
2005, 188:2, eff. Aug. 29, 2005. 2014, 237:1, eff. Sept. 19, 2014.

i3
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562 Winterbrook Road, Campton, NH 03223
Phone: (603) 726-3082 | Fax: (603) 726-8611
www.waterville-estatesnh.gov

Volunteer Request — Planning Board

Please consider volunteering to assist your community's effort to be the best it can be and meet
your neighbors. If you would like to volunteer for any of them, please contact Maureen Patti via
email at maureen@waterville-estates.com. Thank you for supporting your community.

Planning Board
Chair: Mark Canfield
Per RSA this committee must have 7 members and volunteers must be a full-time resident




